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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1—INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

 June 30, 2019  December 30, 2018
ASSETS    

Current assets:    
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,412  $ 4,014
Trade and other receivables 13,148  11,693
Inventories 12,393  10,396
Prepaid rent 3,563  1,880
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10,113  6,695

Total current assets 42,629  34,678
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $353,094 and $328,873, respectively 353,735  289,817
Franchise rights, net of accumulated amortization of $112,093 and $108,021, respectively (Note 3) 325,173  175,897
Goodwill (Note 3) 106,163  38,469
Franchise agreements, at cost less accumulated amortization of $12,039 and $12,022, respectively 32,407  24,414
Operating right-of-use assets, net 785,000  —
Deferred income taxes (Note 8) 34,692  28,291
Other assets 9,868  8,685
Total assets $ 1,689,667  $ 600,251

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Current portion of long-term debt and finance lease liabilities (Notes 6 and 7) $ 6,512  $ 1,948
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 39,715  —
Accounts payable 29,652  29,143
Accrued interest 221  3,818
Accrued payroll, related taxes and benefits 29,567  28,719
Accrued real estate taxes 7,608  5,910
Other liabilities 21,336  12,601

Total current liabilities 134,611  82,139
Long-term debt and finance lease liabilities, net of current portion (Notes 6 and 7) 436,541  276,823
Lease financing obligations 1,195  1,196
Operating lease liabilities 777,054  —
Deferred income—sale-leaseback of real estate —  10,073
Accrued postretirement benefits 4,387  4,320
Other liabilities (Note 5) 9,895  40,160
Total liabilities 1,363,683  414,711
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)  
Stockholders’ equity:    

Preferred stock, par value $.01; authorized 20,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding—10,100 shares —  —
Voting common stock, par value $.01; authorized—100,000,000 shares, issued—44,371,515 and 36,583,903 shares, respectively,
and outstanding—43,481,142 and 35,742,427 shares, respectively 435  357
Additional paid-in capital 298,381  150,459
Retained earnings 27,814  35,511
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (646)  (646)
Treasury stock, at cost —  (141)

Total stockholders’ equity 325,984  185,540
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,689,667  $ 600,251

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended

 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Restaurant sales $ 368,559  $ 303,050  $ 659,348  $ 574,636
Costs and expenses:        

Cost of sales 109,157  81,917  191,732  154,922
Restaurant wages and related expenses 121,140  96,954  221,332  188,098
Restaurant rent expense 26,690  19,879  48,606  39,853
Other restaurant operating expenses 56,308  44,589  101,913  87,428
Advertising expense 14,677  12,356  26,549  23,621
General and administrative (including stock-based compensation
expense of $1,282, $1,385, $2,808 and $2,970 respectively) 20,620  16,020  40,344  32,156
Depreciation and amortization 17,121  14,621  32,413  28,871
Impairment and other lease charges (Note 4) 367  2,881  1,277  3,190
Other expense (income), net 376  —  (1,753)  —

Total operating expenses 366,456  289,217  662,413  558,139
Income (loss) from operations 2,103  13,833  (3,065)  16,497
Loss on extinguishment of debt 7,443  —  7,443  —
Interest expense 6,900  5,917  12,847  11,843
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 2) —  (208)  —  (230)
Income (loss) before income taxes (12,240)  8,124  (23,355)  4,884
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (Note 8) (8,508)  336  (8,154)  198
Net income (loss) $ (3,732)  $ 7,788  $ (15,201)  $ 4,686

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (Note 13) $ (0.09)  $ 0.17  $ (0.39)  $ 0.10

Weighted average common shares outstanding:        
Basic 41,051,354  35,720,243  38,548,246  35,693,027
Diluted 41,051,354  45,201,266  38,548,246  45,234,604

Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:        
Net income (loss) $ (3,732)  $ 7,788  $ (15,201)  $ 4,686

Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (3,732)  $ 7,788  $ (15,201)  $ 4,686

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

             Accumulated     
         Additional    Other    Total

 Common Stock  Preferred Stock  Paid-In  Retained  Comprehensive  Treasury  Stockholders'

 Shares  Amount  Shares  Amount  Capital  Earnings  Loss  Stock  Equity

Balance, December 31, 2018 35,742,427  $ 357  100  $ —  $ 150,459  $ 35,511  $ (646)  $ (141)  $ 185,540

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  1,526  —  —  —  1,526

Vesting of non-vested shares 371,824  4  —  —  (4)  —  —  —  —

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (11,469)  —  —  (11,469)
Adoption of ASC 842, net of taxes
(Note 6) —  —  —  —  —  7,504  —  —  7,504

Balance, March 31, 2019 36,114,251  $ 361  100  $ —  $ 151,981  $ 31,546  $ (646)  $ (141)  $ 183,101

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  1,282  —  —  —  1,282

Vesting of non-vested shares 2,478  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —
Issuance of common and preferred
stock 7,364,413  74  10,000  —  145,259  —  —  —  145,333

Retirement of treasury stock —  —  —  —  (141)  —  —  141  —

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (3,732)  —  —  (3,732)

Balance, June 30, 2019 43,481,142  $ 435  10,100  $ —  $ 298,381  $ 27,814  $ (646)  $ —  $ 325,984

                  

                  

Balance, December 31, 2017 35,436,252  $ 354  100  $ —  $ 144,650  $ 25,407  $ (1,210)  $ (141)  $ 169,060

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  1,585  —  —  —  1,585

Vesting of non-vested shares 283,248  3  —  —  (3)  —  —  —  —

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (3,102)  —  —  (3,102)

Balance, April 1, 2018 35,719,500  $ 357  100  $ —  $ 146,232  $ 22,305  $ (1,210)  $ (141)  $ 167,543

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  1,385  —  —  —  1,385

Vesting of non-vested shares 3,338  1  —  —  (1)  —  —  —  —

Net income —  —  —  —  —  7,788  —  —  7,788

Balance, July 1, 2018 35,722,838  $ 358  100  $ —  $ 147,616  $ 30,093  $ (1,210)  $ (141)  $ 176,716

                  

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands) (Unaudited)

 Six Months Ended
 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Cash flows provided by operating activities:    

Net income (loss) $ (15,201)  $ 4,686
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Loss on disposals of property and equipment 508  209
Stock-based compensation 2,808  2,970
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 2) —  (230)
Gain on settlement agreement (Note 14) (1,913)  —
Impairment and other lease charges 1,277  3,190
Depreciation and amortization 32,413  28,871
Amortization of deferred financing costs 719  601
Amortization of bond premium and discount on debt (264)  (449)
Amortization of deferred gains from sale-leaseback transactions —  (790)
Deferred income taxes (8,219)  38
Change in refundable income taxes (41)  —
Loss on extinguishment of debt - non-cash 129  —
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities (1,384)  (269)

Net cash provided by operating activities 10,832  38,827
Cash flows used for investing activities:    

Capital expenditures:    
New restaurant development (19,120)  (12,157)
Restaurant remodeling (12,990)  (10,995)
Other restaurant capital expenditures (8,784)  (7,973)
Corporate and restaurant information systems (2,198)  (1,338)

Total capital expenditures (43,092)  (32,463)
Acquisition of restaurants, net of cash acquired (Note 2) (127,980)  —
Properties purchased for sale-leaseback —  (2,123)
Proceeds from sale-leaseback transactions 4,637  2,862
Proceeds from insurance recoveries 123  —

Net cash used for investing activities (166,312)  (31,724)
Cash flows provided by financing activities:    

Proceeds from issuance of Term Loan B Facility 422,875  —
Retirement of 8% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes, premium and fees (280,500)  —
Borrowings under prior revolving credit facility —  4,500
Repayments under prior revolving credit facility —  (4,500)
Borrowings under new revolving credit facility 175,750  —
Repayments under new revolving credit facility (150,750)  —
Proceeds from lease financing obligations —  2,692
Payments on finance lease liabilities (981)  (888)
Costs associated with financing long-term debt (11,516)  (154)

Net cash provided by financing activities 154,878  1,650
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (602)  8,753
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 4,014  29,412
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 3,412  $ 38,165

CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Six Months Ended
 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Supplemental disclosures:    

Interest paid on long-term debt $ 15,988  $ 11,639



Interest paid on lease financing obligations $ 52  $ 52
Accruals for capital expenditures $ 4,882  $ 3,230
Common and preferred stock issued for consideration in acquisition $ 145,333  $ —
Income taxes paid $ 138  $ 133
Lease assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 36,124  $ —
Lease assets and liabilities resulting from lease modifications $ 10,255  $ —
Finance lease obligations acquired or incurred $ 518  $ —

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Basis of Presentation
Business Description. At June 30, 2019 Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc. ("Carrols Restaurant Group") operated, as franchisee, 1,023

Burger King® restaurants in 23 Northeastern, Midwestern and Southeastern states. At June 30, 2019, the Company also operated 58 Popeyes® in
7 Southeastern states.

Basis of Consolidation. Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc. is a holding company and conducts all of its operations through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries Carrols Corporation (“Carrols”) and Carrols' wholly-owned subsidiary, Carrols LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and
Carrols LLC's wholly-owned subsidiary Republic Foods, Inc., a Maryland corporation ("Republic Foods"), and effective on April 30, 2019,
New CFH, LLC and it's wholly-owned subsidiaries. New CFH's direct wholly-owned subsidiaries include Alabama Quality, LLC, Carolina
Quality, LLC, Cambridge Quality Chicken, LLC, Frayser Holdings, LLC, Louisiana Quality, LLC, Cambridge Franchise Real Estate, LLC,
Cambridge Real Estate Development, LLC, Carolina Quality Properties, LLC, CFH Real Estate, LLC, and Tennessee Quality, LLC. Unless the
context otherwise requires, Carrols Restaurant Group and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Company.” All
intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year. The Company uses a 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31. The three and six months
ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 each contained thirteen and twenty-six weeks, respectively. The 2019 fiscal year will end December 29,
2019 and will contain 52 weeks.

Basis of Presentation. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 have been prepared without an audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and do not include certain of the information and the footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary
for a fair presentation of such unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been included. The results of operations for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto contained in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 30, 2018. The December 30, 2018
consolidated balance sheet data is derived from those audited consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant items subject to
such estimates include: accrued occupancy costs, insurance liabilities, evaluation for impairment of long-lived assets and franchise rights, lease
accounting matters, the valuation of acquired assets and liabilities and the valuation of deferred income tax assets. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Segment Information. Operating segments are components of an entity for which separate financial information is available and is
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources and assess performance. The Company's chief operating
decision maker currently evaluates the Company's operations from a number of different operational perspectives; however resource allocation
decisions are determined based on the chief operating decision maker's evaluation of the total Company operations. The Company derives all
significant revenues from a single operating segment. Accordingly, the Company views the operating results of its restaurants as one reportable
segment.

7



CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Business Combinations. In accordance with ASC 805, the Company allocates the purchase price of an acquired business to its net
identifiable assets and liabilities based on the estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the amount allocated to the assets and
liabilities, if any, is recorded as goodwill. The excess value of the net identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the purchase price, if any,
is recorded as a bargain purchase gain. The Company uses all available information to estimate fair values of identifiable intangible assets and
property acquired. In making these determinations, the Company sometimes engages an independent third party valuation specialist to assist
with the valuation of certain leasehold improvements, franchise rights and favorable and unfavorable leases.

The Company estimates that the seller's carrying value of acquired restaurant equipment, subject to certain adjustments, is equivalent to
fair value of this equipment at the date of the acquisition. The fair values of assumed franchise agreements are valued as if the remaining term
of the agreement is at the market rate. The fair values of acquired land, buildings, certain leasehold improvements and restaurant equipment
subject to finance leases are determined using both the cost approach and market approach. The fair value of the favorable and unfavorable
leases acquired, right-of-use assets, right-of-use liabilities, as well as the fair value of land, buildings, leasehold improvements and restaurant
equipment subject to finance leases acquired is measured using significant inputs observable in the open market. The Company categorizes all
such inputs as Level 2 inputs under ASC 820. The fair value of acquired franchise rights is primarily determined using the income approach,
and unobservable inputs classified as Level 3 under ASC 820.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2019, the Company did not have any cash invested in money market funds. At December 30,
2018, the Company had $2.3 million, invested in money market funds, which are classified as cash equivalents on the condensed consolidated
balance sheet.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. In determining fair value, the accounting standards establish a
three level hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities; Level 2 inputs are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices in active markets for
similar assets or liabilities; and Level 3 inputs are unobservable and reflect the Company's own assumptions. Financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, accounts payable and long-term debt. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these financial instruments. The
carrying amount of the Term Loan B Credit Facility at June 30, 2019 approximate fair value because of its variable rate. The Carrols Restaurant
Group 8.0% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2022 were redeemed in full as of June 30, 2019. At December 30, 2018, the fair value of
the of the 8.0% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes was based on a recent trading value, which is considered Level 2, and was approximately
$277.1 million.

Fair value measurements of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities are primarily used in the impairment analysis of long-lived
assets, goodwill and intangible assets. Long-lived assets and definite-lived intangible assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis
using Level 3 inputs. As described in Note 4, the Company recorded long-lived asset impairment charges of $0.3 million and $1.1 million
during the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, respectively, and $2.3 million and $2.4 million during the three and six months ended
July 1, 2018.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Adopted. The Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-02,
Leases (Topic 842) on December 31, 2018, the first day of fiscal 2019. The new standard requires a lessee to recognize a liability for lease
obligations, representing the discounted obligation to make minimum lease payments, and a corresponding right-of-use asset on the balance
sheet for all leases with a term longer than 12 months.

The Company elected the optional transition method to initially apply the new lease standard at the adoption date and accordingly,
financial information for periods prior to the date of initial application have not been adjusted. The Company has elected the package of
practical expedients, which permits the Company to not reassess its prior conclusions regarding lease identification, lease classification and
initial direct costs. The Company did not elect to

8



CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

use the allowed expedient that permitted the use of hindsight or the expedient in determining lease term or impairment of right-of-use assets. In
addition, the Company elected a short-term lease exemption policy that permits the Company to not apply the recognition requirements of the
new lease standard to leases with a term of 12 months or less. The Company also elected an accounting policy to not separate lease and non-
lease components for certain classes of leases.

Upon adoption of this ASU, the Company recognized lease liabilities of approximately $542.9 million, based on the present value of
remaining minimum rental payments discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate and right-of-use assets of approximately $517.6
million. The difference between the right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities is related to prepaid and deferred non-level rents,
unamortized lease acquisition costs and unamortized favorable and unfavorable lease balances. The Company has recognized an adjustment to
retained earnings upon adoption of $7.5 million, net of the deferred tax impact, to eliminate the historical deferred gains on qualified sale-
leaseback transactions. Adoption of this ASU did not materially impact the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows or any covenant
related to the Company's long-term debt.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted. In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued
ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. This ASU simplifies the
accounting for goodwill by eliminating step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Under the new ASU, if the carrying amount of a reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss will be recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its fair value. This
update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption
permitted. The Company believes that this pronouncement will have no impact on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Subsequent events. The Company reviewed and evaluated subsequent events through the issuance date of the Company’s unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions

In 2012, as part of an acquisition of restaurants from Burger King Corporation ("BKC"), the Company was assigned BKC's right of first
refusal on the sale of franchisee-operated restaurants in 20 states (the "ROFR"). Since the beginning of 2018, the Company has acquired an
aggregate of 222 Burger King restaurants and 55 Popeyes restaurants from other franchisees in the following transactions, some of which were
acquired pursuant to the exercise of the ROFR (in thousands, except number of restaurants):

Closing Date  
Number of

Restaurants  Purchase Price  Market Location
2018 Acquisitions:       

February 13, 2018 (1) 1  $ — New York
August 21, 2018 (2) 2  1,666  Detroit, Michigan
September 5, 2018 (2) 31  25,930  Western Virginia
October 2, 2018  10  10,506  South Carolina and Georgia

 44  38,102   
2019 Acquisitions:       

April 30, 2019 (3) 220  257,525  Southeastern states
June 11, 2019  13  15,788  Baltimore, Maryland

Total 2018 and 2019 Acquisitions  277  $ 311,415   

(1) The Company recorded a bargain purchase gain because the fair value of assets acquired, largely representing a franchise right asset of $0.3 million,
exceeded the total fair value of consideration paid by $0.2 million.

(2) Acquisitions resulting from the exercise of the ROFR with Burger King.
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CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

(3) During the second quarter of 2019, the Company completed the merger with New CFH, LLC (“Cambridge”) and acquired 165 Burger King restaurants
and 55 Popeyes restaurants. See further discussion below.

2019 Acquisitions

On April 30, 2019 the Company completed a merger with Cambridge ("the Cambridge Merger") for a purchase price of $257.5 million
through the issuance of shares of stock which consisted of (i) approximately 7.4 million shares of common stock, (ii) 10,000 shares of the
Company's newly designated Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, convertible into approximately 7.5 million shares of common stock, and
(iii) the retirement of approximately $112.2 million of the outstanding indebtedness of Cambridge. The conversion of the Series C Preferred
Stock will be subject to a vote of the Company's stockholders at the Company’s 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on August 29,
2019 (and to the extent not approved, at any stockholder meeting thereafter), and will automatically convert into the Company's common stock
upon stockholder approval of such conversion. All shares issued are subject to a two year restriction on sale or transfer subject to certain limited
exceptions. As part of the transaction, Cambridge has the right to designate up to two director nominees and two Cambridge Holdings
executives joined the Company's Board of Directors on April 30, 2019.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the aggregate purchase price is allocated to the net tangible and intangible assets based on their
estimated fair values on the acquisition date. For purposes of estimating the total purchase price in connection with the Cambridge merger, we
have assumed the issuance of 14.9 million shares of common stock which includes the conversion of the Company's Series C Preferred Stock
into common stock as the Company believes this is the most likely scenario. If the conversion does not occur at the 2019 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders on August 29, 2019, the fair value of the Series C Preferred Stock could be adjusted; which would impact the allocation of the
purchase price for the Cambridge Merger. The value for the common stock of $145.3 million was based on the $9.81 closing price of the
Company's stock on the date of acquisition. See Note 12—Preferred Stock for further information.

The Company has engaged a third party valuation specialist to assist with the valuation of assets acquired. As the values of certain assets
and liabilities are preliminary in nature, the fair values for the equity consideration, property and equipment, favorable and unfavorable leases
which are an adjustment to the right-of-use assets under ASC 842, restaurant equipment, franchise rights and goodwill are subject to adjustment
as additional information is obtained. The preliminary fair value of property and equipment, franchise agreements, and favorable and
unfavorable lease value of the right-of-use assets was based on the assets carrying value due to recent valuations completed by Cambridge on
the acquisition of 132 restaurants and construction of 33 new restaurants in the last three years. When the independent valuation is finalized,
changes to the preliminary valuation of assets acquired or liabilities assumed may result in material adjustments to the estimated fair value of
identifiable assets acquired, including franchise rights, goodwill, and the related deferred taxes.

Goodwill recorded in connection with the Cambridge Merger represents a preliminary assessment of costs in excess of fair values assigned
to the underlying net assets of acquired restaurants. Goodwill is not expected to be deductible for income tax purposes for the Cambridge
Merger.

The Company allocated the aggregate purchase price to the net tangible and intangible assets acquired in the Cambridge Merger at their
estimated fair values. The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the aggregate purchase price for the Cambridge Merger
reflected in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2019.
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Inventory $ 2,865
Prepaid expenses 3,074
Other assets 2,230
Land and buildings 19,746
Restaurant equipment 26,729
Right-of-use assets 250,544
Leasehold improvements 3,941
Franchise fees 7,308
Franchise rights 144,499
Goodwill 67,639
Operating lease liabilities (255,015)
Accounts payable (5,229)
Accrued payroll, related taxes and benefits (2,990)
Other liabilities (7,816)

Net assets acquired $ 257,525

The Company allocated the aggregate purchase price to the net tangible and intangible assets acquired in the 2019 acquisitions (other than
the Cambridge Merger) at their estimated fair values. The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the aggregate purchase
price for the 2019 acquisitions reflected in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2019.

Inventory $ 147
Restaurant equipment 706
Restaurant equipment - subject to finance leases 150
Right-of-use assets 9,515
Leasehold improvements 6,205
Franchise fees 358
Franchise rights 8,849
Goodwill 55
Operating lease liabilities (9,968)
Finance lease liabilities for restaurant equipment (185)
Accounts payable (44)

Net assets acquired $ 15,788

Goodwill recorded in connection with the 2019 acquisitions represents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets
of acquired restaurants. The Company is evaluating if goodwill will be deductible for income tax purposes for the 2019 acquisitions. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are due primarily to the book and tax bases difference of franchise rights, property and equipment, net
favorable and unfavorable leases.
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2018 Acquisitions

The Company allocated the aggregate purchase price to the net tangible and intangible assets acquired in the acquisitions at their
estimated fair values. The following table summarizes the final allocation of the aggregate purchase price for the 2018 acquisitions reflected in
the condensed consolidated balance sheets as of December 30, 2018.

Inventory $ 401
Restaurant equipment 2,092
Restaurant equipment - subject to finance leases 43
Leasehold improvements 1,329
Franchise fees 1,264
Franchise rights 31,275
Favorable leases 587
Deferred income taxes 346
Goodwill 1,677
Finance lease liabilities for restaurant equipment (49)
Unfavorable leases (624)
Accounts payable (9)

Net assets acquired $ 38,332

The results of operations for the restaurants acquired are included from the closing date of the respective acquisition. The 2018 and
2019 acquired restaurants contributed restaurant sales of $65.7 million and $78.6 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2019,
respectively, and contributed restaurant sales of $0.3 million and $0.4 million in the three and six months ended July 1, 2018, respectively. It is
impracticable to disclose net earnings for the post-acquisition period for the acquired restaurants as net earnings of these restaurants were not
tracked on a collective basis due to the integration of administrative functions, including field supervision.

The unaudited pro forma impact on the results of operations for the restaurants acquired in 2019 for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 is included below. The unaudited pro forma results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results that
would have occurred had the acquisitions been consummated at the beginning of the periods presented, nor are they necessarily indicative of
any future consolidated operating results. The following table summarizes the Company's unaudited pro forma operating results:

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Restaurant sales $ 397,213  $ 394,283  $ 764,014  $ 750,412
Net income (loss) $ (926)  $ 13,535  $ (8,440)  $ 14,655
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.02)  $ 0.30  $ (0.22)  $ 0.32

This unaudited pro forma financial information does not give effect to any anticipated synergies, operating efficiencies, cost savings or
any integration costs related to the acquired restaurants.

The unaudited pro forma financial results exclude transaction costs recorded as general and administrative expenses of $1.4 million and
$4.0 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 and $0.1 million and $0.2 million during the three and six months ended
July 1, 2018.
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3. Intangible Assets
Goodwill. The Company is required to review goodwill for impairment annually, or more frequently when events and circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. If the determined fair value of goodwill is less than the related carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognized. The Company performs its annual impairment assessment as of the last day of its fiscal year and does not
believe circumstances have changed since the last assessment date which would make it necessary to reassess the value of its goodwill. There
have been no recorded goodwill impairment losses during the six months ended June 30, 2019 or July 1, 2018. The change in goodwill for the
six months ended June 30, 2019 is summarized below.

Balance at December 30, 2018 $ 38,469
Acquisitions of restaurants (Note 2) 67,694
Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 106,163

Franchise Rights. Amounts allocated to franchise rights for each acquisition of Burger King® and Popeyes® restaurants are amortized
using the straight-line method over the average remaining term of the acquired franchise agreements plus one twenty-year renewal period.

The Company assesses the potential impairment of franchise rights whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. If an indicator of impairment exists, an estimate of the aggregate undiscounted cash flows from the
acquired restaurants is compared to the respective carrying value of franchise rights for each acquisition. If an asset is determined to be
impaired, the loss is measured by the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its fair value. No impairment charges were recorded
related to the Company’s franchise rights for the three or six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018. The change in franchise rights for
the six months ended June 30, 2019 is summarized below:

Balance at December 30, 2018 $ 175,897
Acquisitions of restaurants (Note 2) 153,348
Amortization expense (4,072)
Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 325,173

Amortization expense related to franchise rights was $2.0 million and $1.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1,
2018, respectively and $4.1 million and $3.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018, respectively. The Company
expects annual amortization expense to be $8.3 million in 2019 and $8.4 million in each of the following five years.

4. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Other Lease Charges

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, principally property and equipment, for impairment at the restaurant level. If an indicator of
impairment exists for any of its assets, an estimate of the undiscounted future cash flows over the life of the primary asset for each restaurant is
compared to that long-lived asset’s carrying value. If the carrying value is greater than the undiscounted cash flow, the Company then
determines the fair value of the asset and if an asset is determined to be impaired, the loss is measured by the excess of the carrying amount of
the asset over its fair value. For closed restaurant locations, the Company reviews the future minimum lease payments and related ancillary
costs from the date of the restaurant closure to the end of the remaining lease term and records a lease charge for the lease liabilities to be
incurred, net of any estimated sublease recoveries.

The Company determines the fair value of restaurant equipment, for those restaurants reviewed for impairment, based on current
economic conditions and the Company’s history of transferring these assets in the operation of its business. The Company determines the fair
value of right-of-use lease assets based on an assessment of market rents and a discounted future cash flow model. These fair value asset
measurements rely on significant unobservable inputs and are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
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During the three months ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded impairment and other lease charges of $0.4 million consisting of
$0.2 million related to initial impairment charges for one underperforming restaurant, capital expenditures of $0.1 million at previously
impaired restaurants, and $0.1 million associated with the closure of one underperforming restaurant. During the six months ended June 30,
2019, the Company also recorded impairment and other lease charges of $1.3 million consisting of $0.9 million related to initial impairment
charges for three underperforming restaurants, capital expenditures of $0.2 million at underperforming restaurants and $0.2 million of other
lease charges primarily due to the de-imaging of six restaurants closed during the first quarter.

During the three months ended July 1, 2018, the Company recorded impairment and other lease charges of $2.9 million which included
$1.9 million related to the write-off of defective product holding unit kitchen equipment that was replaced, a loss of $0.6 million associated
with a sale-leaseback of a restaurant property and $0.4 million of capital expenditures at underperforming restaurants. During the six months
ended July 1, 2018, the company also recorded impairment and other lease charges of $0.1 million associated with the closure of two
underperforming restaurants.

The following table presents the activity in the accrual for closed restaurant locations:

 Six Months Ended  Year Ended
 June 30, 2019  December 30, 2018
Balance, beginning of period $ 1,352  $ 2,028

Provisions for closures 42  249
Changes in estimates of accrued costs 82  (147)
Payments, net (260)  (889)
Other adjustments, including the effect of discounting future obligations 575  111

Balance, end of period $ 1,791  $ 1,352

Changes in estimates of accrued costs primarily relate to revisions or terminations of certain closed restaurant leases, changes in
assumptions for sublease income and other costs. Other adjustments include the assumption of a $0.5 million liability for a closed restaurant
acquired in the Cambridge merger.

5. Other Liabilities, Long-Term

Other liabilities, long-term, at June 30, 2019 and December 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

 June 30, 2019  December 30, 2018
Deferred rent $ —  $ 16,610
Unfavorable leases, net —  12,348
Accrual for closed restaurants, long-term 828  3,074
Accrued workers’ compensation and general liability claims 4,676  4,398
Deferred compensation 3,799  3,610
Other 592  120
 $ 9,895  $ 40,160

In accordance with the adoption of ASC 842, as of December 31, 2018, the first day of fiscal 2019, unamortized unfavorable leases of
$12.3 million, deferred rent balances of $16.6 million and unamortized lease incentives of $2.6 million were reclassified to adjust the beginning
balance of operating right-of-use assets.
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6. Leases

The Company utilizes land and buildings in its operations under various lease agreements. The Company does not consider any one of
these individual leases material to the Company's operations. Initial lease terms are generally for twenty years and, in many cases, provide for
renewal options and in most cases rent escalations. The exercise of such renewal options are generally at the Company’s sole discretion. The
Company evaluates renewal options at lease commencement to determine if such options are reasonably certain to be exercised based on
economic factors. Certain leases also require contingent rent, determined as a percentage of sales as defined by the terms of the applicable lease
agreement. For most locations, the Company is obligated for occupancy related costs including payment of property taxes, insurance and
utilities.

The right-of-use (“ROU”) lease assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities
represent the Company’s obligation to make payments in exchange for that right of use. As the rate implicit within our leases is not readily
determinable, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate which considers the Company's debt issuances and lease term in determining
the present value of future payments. The ROU asset is also reduced by lease incentives, initial direct costs and adjusted by favorable lease
assets and unfavorable lease liabilities. Variable lease components represent amounts that are fixed in nature and are recognized in expense as
incurred. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet and are recognized as lease expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company does not account for lease components (e.g., fixed payments including rent, real estate
taxes and insurance costs) separately from the non-lease components.

As of June 30, 2019, the Company had additional leases that have not yet commenced of $9.7 million. These leases will commence during
the remainder of fiscal 2019 or in 2020 with lease terms of 5 years to 20 years.

In addition, the Company utilizes certain restaurant equipment under various finance lease agreements with initial terms of generally eight
years. The Company does not consider any one of these individual leases material to the Company's operations.

For certain leases where rent escalates based upon a change in a financial index, such as the Consumer Price Index, the difference
between the rate at lease inception and the subsequent fluctuations in that rate are included in variable lease costs. Additionally, because the
Company has elected to not separate lease and non-lease components, in limited instances, variable costs also include payments to the landlord
for common area maintenance, real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expenses. Lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, with variable lease payments recognized in the period those payments are incurred.

Lease Cost

The components and classification of lease expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:
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    Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
Lease cost  Classification  June 30, 2019  June 30, 2019
Operating lease cost (1)  Restaurant rent expense  $ 22,543  $ 40,837
Operating lease cost  General and administrative  148  222
Variable lease cost  Restaurant rent expense  4,290  8,090
Sublease income  Restaurant rent expense  (143)  (321)
Finance lease cost:       

Amortization of right-of-use assets  Depreciation and amortization  523  999
Interest on lease liabilities  Interest expense  64  135

Total lease cost    $ 27,425  $ 49,962

(1) Includes short-term leases which are not material.

Lease Position

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows as of June 30, 2019:

    As of
Leases  Classification  June 30, 2019
Assets     

Operating leases  Operating right-of-use assets, net  $ 785,000
Finance leases  Property and equipment, net  2,904

Total leased assets    $ 787,904

Liabilities     
Current     

Operating leases  Current portion of operating lease liabilities  $ 39,715
Finance leases  Current portion of long-term debt and finance lease liabilities  2,261

Long-term     
Operating leases  Operating lease liabilities  777,054
Finance leases  Long-term debt and finance lease liabilities, net  1,393

Total lease liabilities    $ 820,423

Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term   
Operating leases    14.5 years
Finance leases    1.9 years

Weighted Average Discount Rate   
Operating leases    7.0%
Finance leases    8.0%

Other Information

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the six months ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:
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  Six Months Ended
  June 30, 2019
Gain on sale-leaseback transactions  $ 105
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:   

Operating cash flows from operating leases  $ 36,006
Operating cash flows from finance leases  $ 135
Financing cash flows from finance leases  $ 981

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable lease at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Fiscal year ending: Operating Leases  Finance Leases
December 29, 2019 $ 47,846  $ 1,244
January 3, 2021 93,769  1,755
January 2, 2022 92,202  583
January 1, 2023 91,415  240
December 31, 2023 90,493  68
Thereafter 907,550  129
Total minimum lease payments 1,323,275  4,019

Less: imputed interest (506,506)  (365)
Present value of lease liabilities 816,769  3,654

Less: current portion (39,715)  (2,261)
Total long-term lease liabilities $ 777,054  $ 1,393

Disclosures Related to Periods Prior to Adoption of the New Lease Standard

As previously disclosed in the Company's 2018 Annual Report on Form 10-K and under the previous lease accounting standard, the
maturities of lease liabilities at December 30, 2018 were as follows:

Fiscal year ending: Operating Leases  Capital Leases
December 29, 2019 $ 73,304  $ 2,180
January 3, 2021 71,764  1,454
January 2, 2022 70,607  345
January 1, 2023 70,160  190
December 31, 2023 69,221  68
Thereafter 640,793  129
Total minimum lease payments $ 995,849  4,366

     Less amount representing interest   (425)
Total obligations under capital leases   3,941

     Less current portion   (1,948)
Long-term obligations under capital leases   $ 1,993
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7. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at June 30, 2019 and December 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

 June 30, 2019  December 30, 2018
Collateralized:    

Term Loan B Facility $ 425,000  $ —
Senior Credit Facility - Revolving credit borrowings 25,000  —
Carrols Restaurant Group 8% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes —  275,000

Finance lease liabilities 3,654  3,941
 453,654  278,941
Less: current portion of long-term debt and finance lease liabilities (6,512)  (1,948)
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (8,519)  (3,673)
Less: unamortized original issue discount (2,082)  —
Add: bond premium —  3,503

Total Long-term debt $ 436,541  $ 276,823

On April 30, 2019, the Company entered into a new senior secured credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of $550.0 million,
consisting of (i) a Term Loan B Facility in an aggregate principal amount of $425.0 million (the “Term Loan B Facility”) maturing on April 30,
2026 and (ii) a new revolving credit facility (including a sub-facility for standby letters of credit) in an aggregate principal amount of $125.0
million maturing on April 30, 2024 (the “New Revolving Credit Facility” and, together with the Term Loan B Facility, the “New Senior Credit
Facilities”).

The net proceeds of the Term Loan B Facility were $422.9 million after original issue discount and were used to (i) refinance the
indebtedness of Carrols, including redemption of $275.0 million of 8.0% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2022 and accrued interest
thereon at a redemption price of 102%, and (ii) retirement of the indebtedness of Cambridge and (iii) the payment of fees and expenses in
connection with the Cambridge Merger and New Senior Credit Facilities. The proceeds of the Revolving Credit Facility will finance ongoing
working capital and other general corporate purposes, including permitted acquisitions and required expenditures under development
agreements. In connection with these transactions, the Company recognized a loss of $7.4 million on the extinguishment of the 8% Senior
Secured Second Lien Notes.

Borrowings under the New Senior Credit Facilities bear interest, at a rate per annum equal to (i) the Alternate Base Rate (as defined in the
New Senior Credit Facilities) plus 2.25% or (b) LIBOR Rate (as defined in the New Senior Credit Facilities) plus 3.25%. At June 30, 2019 the
Company's LIBOR Rate margin was 3.25% and the Alternate Base Rate margin was 2.25%.

The Term Loan B borrowings shall be due and payable in quarterly installments, beginning on September 30, 2019 as follows:

(i) twenty-seven quarterly installments of $1.1 million;
(ii) one final payment of $396.3 million on April 30, 2026.

As of June 30, 2019, there were $25.0 million of revolving credit borrowings outstanding and $11.7 million of letters of credit issued
under the new revolving credit facility. After reserving for issued letters of credit and outstanding revolving credit borrowings, $88.3 million
was available for revolving credit borrowings under the New Senior Credit Facilities at June 30, 2019.

The Company was in compliance with the financial covenants under its New Senior Credit Facilities at June 30, 2019.
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8% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2022. On April 29, 2015, the Company issued $200.0 million principal amount of 8.0% Senior
Secured Second Lien Notes due 2022 and on June 23, 2017, the Company issued an additional $75.0 million principal amount of 8.0% Senior
Secured Second Lien Notes due 2022 (the "8% Notes"). The 8% Notes mature and were payable on May 1, 2022. Interest was payable semi-
annually on May 1 and November 1. The 8% Notes were guaranteed by the Company's subsidiaries and were secured by second-priority liens
on substantially all of the Company's and its subsidiaries' assets (including a pledge of all of the capital stock and equity interests of its
subsidiaries).

Prior Senior Credit Facility. The Company's prior senior credit facility provided for maximum revolving credit borrowings of up to $73.0
million (including $20.0 million available for letters of credit). Borrowings under the prior senior credit facility bore interest at a rate per
annum, at the Company’s option, of:

(i) the Alternate Base Rate plus the applicable margin of 1.75% to 2.75% based on the Company’s Adjusted Leverage Ratio, or
(ii) the LIBOR Rate plus the applicable margin of 2.75% to 3.75% based on the Company’s Adjusted Leverage Ratio (all terms as defined

under the prior senior credit facility).

The Company’s obligations under the prior senior credit facility were jointly and severally guaranteed by its subsidiaries and were
secured by first priority liens on substantially all of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, including a pledge of all of the capital stock
and equity interests of its subsidiaries.

Under the prior senior credit facility, the Company was required to make mandatory prepayments of borrowings in the event of
dispositions of assets, debt issuances and insurance and condemnation proceeds (all subject to certain exceptions).

The prior senior credit facility contained certain covenants, including without limitation, those limiting the Company’s and its
subsidiaries' ability to, among other things, incur indebtedness, incur liens, sell or acquire assets or businesses, change the character of its
business in all material respects, engage in transactions with related parties, make certain investments, make certain restricted payments or pay
dividends. In addition, the prior senior credit facility required the Company to meet certain financial ratios, including a Fixed Charge Coverage
Ratio, Adjusted Leverage Ratio and First Lien Leverage Ratio (all as defined under the prior senior credit facility).

The prior senior credit facility contained customary default provisions, including that the lenders could terminate their obligation to
advance and may declare the unpaid balance of borrowings, or any part thereof, immediately due and payable upon the occurrence and during
the continuance of customary defaults which included, without limitation, payment default, covenant defaults, bankruptcy type defaults, cross-
defaults on other indebtedness, judgments or upon the occurrence of a change of control.

8. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 was comprised of the
following:

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Current $ 53  $ 57  $ 65  $ 160
Deferred (8,561)  279  (8,219)  38
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (8,508)  $ 336  $ (8,154)  $ 198

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax purposes.
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The benefit for income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 was derived using an estimated effective annual income tax
rate for all of 2019 of 35.1%, which excludes any discrete tax adjustments. The difference compared to the statutory rate for 2019 is attributed
to approximately $3.0 million of non-deductible acquisition costs incurred during the year and the benefits of federal employment credits which
are not directly related to the amount of pre-tax loss recorded in a period. Accordingly, in periods where recorded pre-tax income (loss) is
relatively small, the proportional effect of these items on the effective tax rate may be significant. The income tax benefit for the six months
ended June 30, 2019 contains net discrete tax adjustments of $0.1 million of tax expense.

The provision for income taxes for the three and six months ended July 1, 2018 was derived using an estimated effective annual income
tax rate for all of 2018 of 1.5%, which excludes any discrete tax adjustments and was below the statutory rate due to the effect of fixed
employment tax credits on taxable income. The income tax expense for the six months ended July 1, 2018 contains net discrete tax adjustments
of $0.1 million of tax expense.

As of June 30, 2019, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $89.6 million which expire beginning in
2033. The Company's state net operating loss carryforwards expire beginning in 2019 through 2038.

The Company's policy is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. At June 30, 2019
and December 30, 2018, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits and no accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions. The tax years
2013 - 2018 remain open to examination by the major taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject. Although it is not reasonably
possible to estimate the amount by which unrecognized tax benefits may increase within the next twelve months due to the uncertainties
regarding the timing of examinations, the Company does not expect unrecognized tax benefits to significantly change in the next twelve
months.

9. Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 was $1.3 million and $1.4 million,
respectively and for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 was $2.8 million and $3.0 million, respectively. On January 15, 2019,
the Company granted 417,500 non-vested restricted shares to certain employees and officers of the Company and 47,470 non-vested restricted
shares to outside directors of the Company. These shares vest, become non-forfeitable and are being expensed over their three-year vesting
period.

A summary of all non-vested shares activity for the six months ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

 Shares  
Weighted Average
Grant Date Price

Non-vested at December 30, 2018 796,476  $ 13.12
Granted 468,199  $ 9.48
Vested (374,302)  $ 12.66
Non-vested at June 30, 2019 890,373  $ 11.40

The fair value of non-vested shares is based on the closing price on the date of grant. As of June 30, 2019, the total non-vested
unrecognized stock-based compensation expense was approximately $7.6 million and the remaining weighted average vesting period for non-
vested shares was 1.9 years. The Company expects to record an additional $2.8 million in stock-based compensation expense related to the
vesting of these awards for the remainder of 2019.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Guarantees. Fiesta Restaurant Group, Inc. ("Fiesta"), a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was spun-off in 2012 to
the Company's stockholders. As of June 30, 2019, the Company is a guarantor under 27 Fiesta restaurant property leases, of which all except
for one of those restaurants is still operating, with lease terms expiring on various dates through 2030, and is the primary lessee on five Fiesta
restaurant property leases, which it subleases to Fiesta. The Company is fully liable for all obligations under the terms of the leases in the event
that Fiesta fails to pay any sums due under the lease, subject to indemnification provisions of a Separation and Distribution Agreement entered
into in connection with the spin-off of Fiesta.

The maximum potential amount of future undiscounted rental payments the Company could be required to make under these leases at
June 30, 2019 was $13.8 million of which $0.4 million is included in operating lease liabilities in accordance with ASC 842. The obligations
under these leases will generally continue to decrease over time as these operating leases expire. No payments related to these guarantees have
been made by the Company to date and none are expected to be required to be made in the future. The Company has not recorded a liability for
$13.4 million of these guarantees in accordance with ASC 460 - Guarantees as Fiesta has indemnified the Company for all such obligations
and the Company did not believe it was probable it would be required to perform under any of the guarantees or direct obligations.

Litigation. The Company is a party to various litigation matters that arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not
believe that the outcome of any of these other matters meet the disclosure or recognition standards, nor will they have a material adverse effect
on its consolidated financial statements.

11. Transactions with Related Parties



In connection with an acquisition of restaurants from BKC in 2012, the Company issued to BKC 100 shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, which was exchanged for 100 shares of newly issued Series B Convertible Preferred Stock in 2018, and as of June 30, 2019 is
convertible into approximately 15.4% of the outstanding shares of the Company's common stock after giving effect to the conversion of the
Series B and Series C Preferred Stock. Pursuant to the terms of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, BKC together with certain other
entities that are both affiliates of BKC and either Restaurant Brands International or Restaurant Brands International Limited Partnership
("RBI") are entitled to elect two representatives on the Company's board of directors.

Each of the Company's restaurants operates under a separate franchise agreement with RBI. These franchise agreements generally provide
for an initial term of twenty years and currently have an initial franchise fee of fifty thousand dollars. Any franchise agreement, including
renewals, can be extended at the Company's discretion for an additional 20 year term, with RBI 's approval, provided that, among other things,
the restaurant meets the current restaurant image standard and the Company is not in default under terms of the franchise agreement. In addition
to the initial franchise fee, the Company generally pays BKC a monthly royalty at a rate of 4.5% of sales and Popeye's a weekly royalty at a
rate of 5.0% of sales. Royalty expense was $15.6 million and $13.0 million in the three months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018,
respectively and was $28.0 million and $24.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018, respectively.

The Company is also generally required to contribute 4% of restaurant sales from its restaurants to an advertising fund utilized by RBI for
its advertising, promotional programs and public relations activities, and additional amounts for additional local advertising in markets that
approve such advertising. Advertising expense associated with these expenditures was $14.4 million and $12.1 million in the three months
ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018, respectively and was $25.8 million and $23.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1,
2018, respectively.

As of June 30, 2019, the Company leased 249 of its restaurant locations from BKC and 115 of these locations are subleased by BKC from
various third-party lessors. Aggregate rent under these BKC leases was $6.8 million for each of the three months ended June 30, 2019 and
July 1, 2018, and was $13.6 million and $13.5 million in the six
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months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018, respectively. The Company does not believe that such lease terms have been significantly
affected by the fact that the Company and BKC are deemed to be related parties.

The Company and BKC have entered into an Area Development and Remodeling Agreement ("Area Development Agreement")
commencing on April 30, 2019 and ending on September 30, 2024, which supersedes the Operating Agreement dated as of May 30, 2012, as
amended, between Carrols LLC and BKC. Pursuant to the Area Development Agreement, BKC assigned its right of first refusal under its
franchise agreements with its franchisees to purchase all of the assets of a Burger King restaurant on the same terms proposed between such
franchisee and a third party purchaser (the “ADA ROFR”), in 16 states and a limited number of counties in four additional states, and granted
franchise pre-approval to acquire Burger King restaurants until the date that Carrols LLC has acquired more than an aggregate of 500 Burger
King restaurants. The continued assignment of the ADA ROFR is subject to suspension or termination in the event of non-compliance by
Carrols LLC with certain terms as set forth in the Area Development Agreement. Carrols LLC will pay BKC $3.0 million for the ADA ROFR
in four equal installment payments over the course of one year. As of June 30, 2019, the Company owed BKC $1.5 million associated with its
purchase of the ADA ROFR and $10.1 million related to the payment of advertising, royalties and rent, which is remitted on a monthly basis.

The Company has assumed Cambridge's development agreement for Popeyes®, which includes a right of first refusal for acquisitions
in two southern states, as well as a development commitment for approximately 80 new Popeyes® restaurants over six years.

In addition, the Company received $1.9 million related to a settlement with BKC for their approval of new restaurant development by
other franchisees which unfavorably impacted the Company's restaurants which was recorded as other income in the first quarter of 2019.

12. Preferred Stock

In connection with the Cambridge Merger, Cambridge was issued 10,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock. The Series C Preferred Stock
shall (i) accrue a dividend of 9% per annum that is payable by increasing the Stated Value (as defined in the Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc.
Certificate of Designations of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock) per share of Series C Preferred Stock every six months from the date of
issuance (ii) be subject to certain issuance restrictions and (iii) be initially convertible into 7.5 million of shares of the Company's common
stock, subject to adjustment pursuant to certain anti-dilution provisions and (iv) be automatically convertible into shares of the Company's
common stock upon the vote of the Company's stockholders at the Company's 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on August 29,
2019 (and to the extent not approved, at any stockholder meeting thereafter). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Stockholder Approval will
be voted upon at its next annual meeting of stockholders to be held after the closing of the Mergers. As of June 30, 2019 the 10,000 shares of
Series C Preferred Stock, along with 7.4 million shares of common stock, constitutes approximately 24.2% of the Company's common stock
after giving effect to the conversion of the Series B and Series C Preferred Stock.

13. Net Income (Loss) per Share
The Company applies the two-class method to calculate and present net income (loss) per share. The Company's non-vested share awards,

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock issued to BKC and Series C Preferred Stock contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends and are considered
participating securities for purposes of computing net income (loss) per share pursuant to the two-class method. Under the two-class method,
net earnings are reduced by the amount of dividends declared (whether paid or unpaid) and the remaining undistributed earnings are then
allocated to common stock and participating securities, based on their respective rights to receive dividends. As the Company incurred a net
loss for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2019, and losses are not allocated to participating securities under the two-class
method, such method is not applicable for the aforementioned interim reporting periods.

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding for the reporting period. Diluted net income
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(loss) per share reflects additional shares of common stock outstanding, where applicable, calculated using the treasury stock method or the
two-class method.

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Basic net income (loss) per share:        

Net income (loss) $ (3,732)  $ 7,788  $ (15,201)  $ 4,686
Less: Income attributable to non-vested shares —  (139)  —  (83)
Less: Income attributable to preferred stock —  (1,596)  —  (961)
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (3,732)  $ 6,053  $ (15,201)  $ 3,642

Weighted average common shares outstanding 41,051,354  35,720,243  38,548,246  35,693,027
Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.09)  $ 0.17  $ (0.39)  $ 0.10

Diluted net income (loss) per share:        
Net income (loss) $ (3,732)  $ 7,788  $ (15,201)  $ 4,686
Shares used in computing basic net loss per share 41,051,354  35,720,243  38,548,246  35,693,027
Dilutive effect of preferred stock and non-vested shares —  9,481,023  —  9,541,577
Shares used in computing diluted net loss per share 41,051,354  45,201,266  38,548,246  45,234,604
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.09)  $ 0.17  $ (0.39)  $ 0.10
Shares excluded from diluted net income (loss) per share
computations (1) 17,755,355  —  17,755,355  —

(1) Shares issuable upon conversion of preferred stock and non-vested shares were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share
because their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

14. Other Expense (Income)
In the three months ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded other expense, net of $0.4 million consisting of a loss on the disposal of

restaurant equipment of $0.5 million and a $0.1 million gain on a sale-leaseback transaction.

In the six months ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded other income of $1.8 million which consisted of a $1.9 million gain from a
settlement with BKC for their approval of new restaurant development by other franchisees which unfavorably impacted the Company's
restaurants, a $0.1 million gain on two sale-leaseback transactions, a $0.1 million gain related to an insurance recovery from a fire at one of its
restaurants in the prior year and a loss on a disposal of restaurant equipment of $0.5 million.
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15. Subsequent Events
The Company reviewed and evaluated subsequent events through the issuance date of the Company’s unaudited condensed consolidated

financial statements.

Stock Repurchase Program

On August 2, 2019, the Company's Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase plan ("Repurchase Program") under which the
Company may repurchase up to $25 million of its outstanding common stock. The authorization is effective August 2, 2019, and will expire 24
months thereafter, unless terminated earlier by the Company's Board of Directors. Purchases under the Repurchase Program may be made from
time to time in open market transactions at prevailing market prices or in privately negotiated transactions (including, without limitation, the
use of Rule 10b5-1 plans) in compliance with applicable federal securities laws, including Rule 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. The Company has no obligation to repurchase stock under the Repurchase Program, and the timing, actual number and
value of shares purchased will depend on the Company's stock price, trading volume, general market and economic conditions, and other
factors.

ITEM 2—MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, "Carrols Restaurant Group", the "Company", “we”, “our” or
“us”) operated, as franchisee, a total of 1,081 restaurants in 23 states as of June 30, 2019 under the trade names of Burger King® and Popeyes®.
As of June 30, 2019, we operated, as franchisee, 1,023 Burger King restaurants restaurants in 23 Northeastern, Midwestern and Southeastern
states and operated, as franchisee, 58 Popeyes restaurants in 7 Southeastern states.

    

Burger King restaurants are quick service restaurants that feature the popular flame-broiled Whopper® sandwich, as well as a variety of
hamburgers, chicken and other specialty sandwiches, french fries, salads, breakfast items, snacks, soft drinks and other food offerings. Popeyes
restaurants are quick service restaurants featuring a unique “Louisiana” style menu that includes fried chicken, chicken tenders, fried shrimp
and other seafood, red beans and rice, and other regional items.

Any reference to “BKC” refers to Burger King Corporation and its parent company, Restaurant Brands International Inc. (“RBI”). Any
reference to “PLK” refers to Popeyes Louisiana Kitchen, Inc. and its parent company, RBI.

We operate on a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31. Our fiscal quarters are comprised of 13 weeks,
with the exception of the fourth quarter of a 53 week year, which contains 14 weeks. Our fiscal years ending December 29, 2019 and
December 30, 2018 each contain 52 weeks.

Introduction

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (or "MD&A") is written to help
the reader understand our company. The MD&A is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with our unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying financial statement notes appearing elsewhere in this report and our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 30, 2018. The overview provides our perspective on the individual sections of
MD&A, which include the following:

Company Overview—a general description of our business and our key financial measures.

Recent and Future Events Affecting Our Results of Operations—a description of recent events that affect, and future events that may
affect, our results of operations.
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Results from Operations—an analysis of our results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 compared to the three
and six months ended July 1, 2018 including a review of material items and known trends and uncertainties.

Liquidity and Capital Resources—an analysis of historical information regarding our sources of cash and capital expenditures, the
existence and timing of commitments and contingencies, changes in capital resources and a discussion of cash flow items affecting liquidity.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies—an overview of accounting policies requiring critical judgments and estimates.

Effects of New Accounting Standards—a discussion of new accounting standards and any implications related to our financial statements.

Forward Looking Statements—cautionary information about forward-looking statements and a description of certain risks and
projections.

Company Overview

We are one of the largest restaurant companies in the United States and have been operating restaurants for more than 55 years. We are the
largest Burger King® franchisee in the United States, based on number of restaurants, and have operated Burger King® restaurants since 1976.
As of June 30, 2019, our restaurant operations consisted of 1,023 franchised Burger King® restaurants in 23 states. Following the Cambridge
Acquisition (as defined below) completed on April 30, 2019, we added the Popeyes® brand, operating 58 Popeyes restaurants as of June 30,
2019.

The following is an overview of the key financial measures discussed in our results of operations:

• Restaurant sales consist of food and beverage sales at our restaurants, net of discounts and excluding sales tax collected. Restaurant
sales are influenced by changes in comparable restaurant sales, menu price increases, new restaurant development, acquisition of
restaurants, and the closure of restaurants. Comparable restaurant sales reflects the change in year-over-year sales for the comparable
restaurant base. Newly opened restaurants (excluding restaurants acquired) are included in comparable restaurant sales after they have
been open for 15 months to eliminate the impact of new restaurant openings in comparing the operations of existing restaurants, and all
other restaurants (including restaurants acquired) are included in comparable restaurant sales after they have been operated for 12
months following an acquisition and immediately after they re-open following a remodel.

• Cost of sales consists of food, paper and beverage costs including packaging costs, less purchase discounts and vendor rebates. Cost of
sales is generally influenced by changes in commodity costs, the mix of items sold, the level of promotional discounting and the
effectiveness of our restaurant-level controls to manage food and paper costs.

• Restaurant wages and related expenses include all restaurant management and hourly productive labor costs and related benefits,
employer payroll taxes and restaurant-level bonuses. Payroll and related benefits are subject to inflation, including minimum wage
increases and increased costs for health insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and federal and state unemployment insurance.

• Restaurant rent expense includes base rent and contingent rent on our leases characterized as operating leases, and, in 2018, the
amortization of favorable and unfavorable leases and deferred gains on sale-leaseback transactions.

• Other restaurant operating expenses include all other restaurant-level operating costs, the major components of which are royalty
expenses paid to BKC and PLK, utilities, repairs and maintenance, real estate taxes and credit card fees.
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• Advertising expense includes advertising payments to BKC and PLK based on a percentage of sales as required under our franchise and
operating agreements and additional marketing and promotional expenses in certain of our markets.

• General and administrative expenses are comprised primarily of salaries and expenses associated with corporate and administrative
functions that support the development and operations of our restaurants, legal, auditing and other professional fees, acquisition costs
and stock-based compensation expense.

• EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Restaurant-Level EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss). EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Restaurant-Level
EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss) are non-GAAP financial measures. EBITDA represents net income or loss, before provision
or benefit for income taxes, interest expense, and depreciation and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA adjusted to
exclude impairment and other lease charges, acquisition and integration costs, stock compensation expense, loss on extinguishment of
debt, and other non-recurring income or expense. Restaurant-Level EBITDA represents income or loss from operations adjusted to
exclude general and administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization, impairment, integration costs and other lease charges and
other income or expense. Adjusted net income (loss) represents net income (loss) adjusted to exclude impairment and other lease
charges, acquisition and integration costs, loss on extinguishment of debt, and other non-recurring income and expense and the related
income tax effect of these adjustments.

We are presenting Adjusted EBITDA, Restaurant-Level EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss) because we believe that they provide
a more meaningful comparison than EBITDA and net income (loss) of our core business operating results, as well as with those of
other similar companies. Additionally, we present Restaurant-Level EBITDA because it excludes the impact of general and
administrative expenses and other income or expense, which are not directly related to restaurant-level operations. Management
believes that Adjusted EBITDA and Restaurant-Level EBITDA, when viewed with our results of operations in accordance with GAAP
and the accompanying reconciliations on page 36, provide useful information about operating performance and period-over-period
growth, and provide additional information that is useful for evaluating the operating performance of our core business without regard
to potential distortions. Additionally, management believes that Adjusted EBITDA and Restaurant-Level EBITDA permit investors to
gain an understanding of the factors and trends affecting our ongoing cash earnings, from which capital investments are made and debt
is serviced.

However, EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Restaurant-Level EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss) are not measures of financial
performance or liquidity under GAAP and, accordingly, should not be considered as alternatives to net income (loss), income (loss)
from operations or cash flow from operating activities as indicators of operating performance or liquidity. Also, these measures may
not be comparable to similarly titled captions of other companies. For the reconciliation between net income (loss) to EBITDA,
Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss) and the reconciliation of income (loss) from operations to Restaurant-Level
EBITDA, see page 36.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Restaurant-Level EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss) have important limitations as analytical
tools.  These limitations include the following:
• EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Restaurant-Level EBITDA do not reflect our capital expenditures, future requirements for capital

expenditures or contractual commitments to purchase capital equipment;
• EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Restaurant-Level EBITDA do not reflect the interest expense or the cash requirements necessary

to service principal or interest payments on our debt;
• Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets that we currently depreciate and amortize will likely have

to be replaced in the future, and EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Restaurant-Level EBITDA do not reflect the cash required to
fund such replacements; and

• EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Restaurant-Level EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss) exclude the effect of earnings or charges
resulting from matters that our management does not consider to be indicative of

25



Table of Contents

our ongoing operations. However, some of these charges (such as impairment and other lease charges and acquisition or integration
costs) have recurred and may reoccur.

• Depreciation and amortization primarily includes the depreciation of fixed assets, including equipment, owned buildings and leasehold
improvements utilized in our restaurants, the amortization of franchise rights from our acquisitions and the amortization of franchise
fees paid to BKC and PLK.

• Impairment and other lease charges are determined through our assessment of the recoverability of property and equipment and
intangible assets by determining whether the carrying value of these assets can be recovered over their respective remaining lives
through undiscounted future operating cash flows. A potential impairment charge is evaluated whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of these assets may not be fully recoverable. Losses on sale-leaseback transactions are
recognized when they are incurred. Lease charges are recorded for our obligations under the related leases for closed locations net of
estimated sublease recoveries.

• Interest expense consists of interest expense associated with our $425.0 million Term Loan B, amortization of deferred financing costs,
amortization of bond premium, interest on revolving credit borrowings and through April 30, 2019, interest on the $275.0 million of
8% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2022 (the "8% Notes") and unamortized bond premium.

Recent and Future Events Affecting our Results of Operations

Cambridge Merger

On April 30, 2019, we completed the merger with Cambridge Franchise Holdings, LLC ("Cambridge") and acquired 165 Burger King®

restaurants, 55 Popeyes® restaurants and six convenience stores (the "Cambridge Acquisition"). Cambridge received approximately 7.4 million
shares of the Company's common stock, and at closing owned approximately 16.6% of our outstanding common stock. Cambridge also
received 10,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock of the Company which accrues a 9% dividend per annum, payable semi-annually in shares
of our common stock and is convertible into approximately 7.5 million shares of Carrols common stock. The conversion of the Series C
Preferred Stock received by Cambridge will be subject to a vote of our stockholders which will occur at our 2019 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (or at any future meeting of our stockholders to the extent such conversion is not previously approved), and will automatically
convert into our common stock upon stockholder approval of such conversion. All shares issued or issuable to Cambridge are subject to
a two year restriction on sale or transfer subject to certain limited exceptions.

Area Development and Remodeling Agreement

The Company, Carrols, Carrols LLC, and BKC have entered into the Area Development Agreement commencing on April 30, 2019 and
ending on September 30, 2024, which supersedes the Operating Agreement dated as of May 30, 2012, as amended, between Carrols LLC and
BKC. Pursuant to the Area Development Agreement, BKC assigned the ADA ROFR to Carrols LLC, in 16 states and a limited number of
counties in four additional states, and granted franchise pre-approval to acquire Burger King restaurants until the date that we have acquired
more than an aggregate of 500 Burger King restaurants. The continued assignment of the ADA ROFR is subject to suspension or termination in
the event of non-compliance by Carrols LLC with certain terms as set forth in the Area Development Agreement. Carrols LLC will pay BKC
$3.0 million for the ADA ROFR in four equal installment payments over the course of one year.

Pursuant to the Area Development Agreement, we agreed to open, build and operate 200 new Burger King restaurants and remodel or
upgrade 748 Burger King restaurants to BKC’s Burger King of Tomorrow restaurant image over the term of the Area Development Agreement.
BKC agreed to contribute $10 million to $12 million for upgrades of approximately 50 to 60 Burger King restaurants in 2019 and 2020, most of
which have already been remodeled to the 20/20 image and where BKC is the landlord on the lease for such Burger King restaurants owned
and operated by Carrols LLC or an affiliate.

Through the Cambridge Acquisition, we have also assumed a development agreement for Popeyes®, which includes an assignment by PLK
of its right of first refusal under its franchise agreements with its franchisees for acquisitions in two southern states, as well as, a development
commitment for approximately 80 new Popeyes® restaurants over six years.
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Restaurant Acquisitions

From the beginning of 2018 through June 30, 2019, we acquired 277 restaurants (including the Cambridge Acquisition) from other
franchisees in the following transactions (in thousands, except number of restaurants):

Closing Date  
Number of

Restaurants  Purchase Price  Market Location
2018 Acquisitions:       

February 13, 2018 (1) 1  —  New York
August 21, 2018 (2) 2  1,666  Detroit, Michigan

September 5, 2018 (2) 31  25,930  Western Virginia
October 2, 2018  10  10,506  South Carolina and Georgia

  44  $ 38,102   
       

2019 Acquisitions:       
April 30, 2019 (3) 220  257,525  Southeastern states
June 11, 2019  13  15,788  Baltimore, Maryland

Total 2018 and 2019 Acquisitions  277  $ 311,415   

(1) The Company recorded a bargain purchase gain because the fair value of assets acquired, largely representing a franchise right asset of $0.3 million,
exceeded the total fair value of consideration paid by $0.2 million.

(2) Acquisitions resulting from the exercise of our ROFR.

(3) During the second quarter of 2019, the Company completed the Cambridge Acquisition and acquired 165 Burger King restaurants and 55 Popeyes
restaurants.

The unaudited pro forma impact on the results of operations for the 2019 acquisitions is included below. The unaudited pro forma results
of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have occurred had the acquisitions been consummated at the beginning of
the periods presented, nor are they necessarily indicative of any future consolidated operating results. This unaudited pro forma financial
information does not give effect to any anticipated synergies, operating efficiencies or cost savings or any transaction costs related to the 2018
acquired restaurants.

The following table summarizes certain unaudited pro forma financial information related to our operating results for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018:

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Restaurant sales $ 397,213  $ 394,283  $ 764,014  $ 750,412
Income from operations $ 5,845  $ 21,496  $ 5,950  $ 29,789
Adjusted EBITDA $ 27,277  $ 43,419  $ 43,150  $ 70,657

Capital Expenditures

We expect that for 2019 capital expenditures before discretionary growth-related expenditures (i.e. acquisitions) will be $120 million to
$130 million, including $50 million to $60 million for construction of 20 to 25 new Burger King® restaurants and 5 to 7 new Popeyes®

restaurants, and $35 million to $40 million for remodels and upgrades.

Refinancing of Indebtedness and New Senior Credit Facilities

On April 30, 2019, the Company entered into a new senior secured credit facility which provides for senior secured credit facilities in an
aggregate principal amount of $550.0 million (the "New Senior Credit Facilities"), consisting of (i) a term loan B facility in an aggregate
principal amount of $425.0 million (the “Term Loan B Facility”), the entire amount of which was borrowed by the Company on April 30, 2019
and (ii) a revolving credit facility (including a sub-
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facility for standby letters of credit) in an aggregate principal amount of $125.0 million, which was undrawn as of April 30, 2019. Borrowings
under the Term Loan B Facility and the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at a rate per annum, at the Company's option, of (i) the Alternate
Base Rate (as defined in the New Senior Credit Facilities) plus the applicable margin of 2.25% or (ii) the LIBOR Rate (as defined in the New
Senior Credit Facilities) plus the applicable margin of 3.25%.

The Term Loan B Facility matures on April 30, 2026 and the Revolving Credit Facility matures on April 30, 2024. The Company used
borrowings under the Term Loan B Facility to refinance the existing indebtedness of (i) the Company, including redemption of the $275.0
million 8% Notes at a redemption price equal to 102% of the principal amount of such notes plus accrued interest, and (ii) Cambridge and the
payment of fees and expenses in connection with the transactions. The proceeds of the Revolving Credit Facility will be used to finance
ongoing working capital and for other general corporate purposes of the Company and its subsidiaries, including permitted acquisitions and
required expenditures under development agreements.

As of June 30, 2019, there were $25.0 million of revolving credit borrowings outstanding and $11.7 million of letters of credit were issued
under the New Senior Credit Facilities. After reserving for issued letters of credit and outstanding revolving credit borrowings, $88.3 million
was available for revolving credit borrowings under the New Senior Credit Facilities at June 30, 2019.

Future Restaurant Closures

We evaluate the performance of our restaurants on an ongoing basis including an assessment of the current and future operating results of
the restaurant in relation to its cash flow and future occupancy costs, and with regard to franchise agreement renewals, the cost of required
capital improvements. We may elect to close restaurants based on these evaluations.

In 2018, excluding one restaurant relocated within its trade area, we closed nine restaurants. We currently anticipate closing a total of 10
to 15 restaurants in 2019, of which eight have already closed, excluding two restaurants relocated within its trade area during the first six
months of 2019. Anticipated closings exclude any restaurants being relocated within their trade area, at the end of their respective lease term.

Our determination of whether to close restaurants in the future is subject to further evaluation and may change. We may incur lease
charges in the future from closures of underperforming restaurants prior to the expiration of their contractual lease term. We do not believe that
the future impact on our results of operations due to restaurant closures will be material, although there can be no assurance in this regard.

Transition to New Lease Accounting Standard

We transitioned to Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases (“ASC 842”), effective December 31, 2018. Our consolidated
financial statements reflect the application of ASC 842 guidance beginning in 2019, while our consolidated financial statements for prior
periods were prepared under the guidance of a previously applicable accounting standard. The most significant effect of this transition that
affects comparability of our results of operations between 2019 and 2018 including the increase in rent expense due to the elimination of
deferred gain amortization from sale-leaseback transactions.

Please refer to Note 6, Leases, to the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further details of the
effects of this change in accounting principle.

Effect of Minimum Wage Increases

Certain of the states and municipalities in which we operate have increased their minimum wage rates for 2019 and in many cases have
also approved additional increases for future periods. Most notably, New York State has increased the minimum wage applicable to our
business to $12.75 an hour in 2019 (from $11.75 per hour in 2018) with subsequent annual increases reaching $15.00 an hour by July 1, 2021.
Since 2015 we have been receiving New York State minimum wage tax credits totaling approximately $500,000 per year that partially offset
these additional labor costs. However, the New York State minimum wage tax credits expired in the beginning in 2019. We had 128 restaurants
in New York State at June 30, 2019. We typically attempt to offset the effects of wage inflation, at least in
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part, through periodic menu price increases. However, no assurance can be given that we will be able to offset these wage increases in the
future.

Stock Repurchase Program

On August 2, 2019, our Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase plan ("Repurchase Program") under which we may repurchase
up to $25 million of our outstanding common stock. The authorization is effective August 2, 2019, and will expire 24 months thereafter, unless
terminated earlier by the Board of Directors. Purchases under the Repurchase Program may be made from time to time in open market
transactions at prevailing market prices or in privately negotiated transactions (including, without limitation, the use of Rule 10b5-1 plans) in
compliance with applicable federal securities laws, including Rule 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We have no
obligation to repurchase stock under the Repurchase Program, and the timing, actual number and value of shares purchased will depend on our
stock price, trading volume, general market and economic conditions, and other factors.
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Results of Operations

Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2019 Compared to Three and Six Months Ended July 1, 2018
    

The following table highlights the key components of sales and the number of restaurants in operation for the three and six month period
ended June 30, 2019 as compared to the three and six month period ended July 1, 2018 (dollars in thousands):

  Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018

Restaurant Sales:  $ 368,559  $ 303,050  $ 659,348  $ 574,636
Change in Comparable Restaurant Sales %  0.1%  5.0%  1.2%  5.6%
         

Burger King Restaurants operating at beginning of
period:  845  807  849  807

New restaurants opened, including relocations (1) 4  2  6  4
Restaurants acquired  178  —  178  1
Restaurants closed (1) (4)  (2)  (10)  (5)

Restaurants operating at end of period  1,023  807  1,023  807
         

Popeyes Restaurants operating at beginning of period:  —  —  —  —
New restaurants opened  3  —  3  —
Restaurants acquired  55  —  55  —

Restaurants operating at end of period  58  —  58  —

(1) In the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, new restaurants opened and restaurants closed include one restaurant relocated within its market
area and two restaurants closed as a result of relocations.

Restaurant Sales. Comparable restaurant sales increased 0.1% in the second quarter of 2019 consisting of an increase in average check of
0.4%, including a 0.9% effect of menu price increases since the beginning of the first quarter of 2019 which has been partially offset by a
decrease in customer traffic of 0.3%. Restaurant sales also reflected the acquisition of 276 restaurants which contributed $65.7 million in sales,
including $2.9 million of sales at six convenience stores in the second quarter of 2019 and the opening of 10 new restaurants since the
beginning of the second quarter of 2018.

For the six months ended June 30, 2019, comparable restaurant sales increased 1.2% due to an increase in average check of 0.3% and an
increase in customer traffic of 0.9%. The effect in the first six months of 2019 from menu price increases taken since the beginning of 2018 was
approximately 1.1%. Restaurant sales also increased due to the 277 restaurants acquired since the beginning of 2018 which added $78.6 million
of sales, including $2.9 million of sales at six convenience stores acquired for the six months ended June 30, 2019.
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Operating Costs and Expenses (percentages stated as a percentage of total restaurant sales). The following table sets forth, for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018, selected operating results as a percentage of total restaurant sales:

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
 June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Costs and expenses (all restaurants):        

Cost of sales 29.6%  27.0%  29.1%  27.0%
Restaurant wages and related expenses 32.9%  32.0%  33.6%  32.7%
Restaurant rent expense 7.2%  6.6%  7.4%  6.9%
Other restaurant operating expenses 15.3%  14.7%  15.5%  15.2%
Advertising expense 4.0%  4.1%  4.0%  4.1%
General and administrative 5.6%  5.3%  6.1%  5.6%

Cost of sales increased to 29.6% in the second quarter of 2019 from 27.0% in the second quarter of 2018 due primarily to an increase in
commodity costs (1.0%) at Burger King restaurants which included a 4.4% increase in beef costs and an increase in pork and potato costs
compared to the prior year period, higher promotional discounting (0.6%) at Burger King restaurants, lower beverage rebates (0.2%), higher
costs at the Popeyes acquired restaurants and operating inefficiencies both at the Burger King and Popeyes restaurants acquired from
Cambridge.

Cost of sales increased to 29.1% in the first six months of 2019 from 27.0% in the first six months of 2018 as a result of higher
promotional discounting (0.9%) at Burger King restaurants, an increase in commodity costs (0.6%) for Burger King restaurants, higher costs at
the Popeyes acquired restaurants and operating inefficiencies at the Burger King and Popeyes restaurants acquired from Cambridge.

Restaurant wages and related expenses were 32.9% in the second quarter of 2019 and 32.0% in the second quarter of 2018, and in the first
six months of 2019, increased to 33.6% from 32.7% in the first six months of 2018 due to an increase in team member wages (0.8%) at
comparable restaurants and higher medical insurance costs (0.2%) partially offset by the lower wage rates at both the Burger King and Popeyes
restaurants acquired from Cambridge.

Other restaurant operating expenses increased to 15.3% in the second quarter of 2019 from 14.7% in the second quarter of 2018, and in
the first six months of 2019 increased to 15.5% from 15.2% in the first six months of 2018 due primarily to higher expenses for repair and
maintenance and operating supplies (0.6%) in the second quarter of 2019 and (0.3%) in the first six months of 2019 at the Burger King and
Popeyes restaurants acquired from Cambridge.

Restaurant rent expense increased to 7.2% in the second quarter of 2019 from 6.6% in the second quarter of 2018, and increased to 7.4%
in the first six months of 2019 from 6.9% in the first six months of 2018 due to 0.1% from impact of deferred gains on sale-leaseback
transactions no longer recognized in 2019 as a result of adoption of the new lease accounting standard, 0.2% due to higher rent on restaurants
acquired in 2019 and increases in fixed base rentals.

Advertising expense decreased to 4.0% in both the second quarter and first six months of 2019 from 4.1% in both the second quarter of
and first six months of 2018 primarily due to the impact of advertising rate reductions on remodeled restaurants combined with lower
contractual advertising rates on the acquired Cambridge restaurants.

Restaurant-Level EBITDA. As a result of the factors discussed above, Restaurant-Level EBITDA decreased $6.4 million, or 13.4%, to
$41.0 million in the second quarter of 2019, and as a percentage of total restaurant sales, decreased to 11.1% in the second quarter of 2019 from
15.6% in the prior year period. Restaurant-Level EBITDA decreased $11.1 million or 13.7% to $69.6 million in the first six months of 2019,
and as a percentage of total restaurant sales, decreased to 10.6% in the first six months of 2019 from 14.0% in the prior year period. For a
reconciliation between Restaurant-Level EBITDA and income from operations see page 36.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $4.6 million in the second quarter of 2019 to $20.6
million, and as a percentage of total restaurant sales, increased to 5.6% from 5.3% in the second quarter of 2018. The increase in general and
administrative expenses were primarily from $1.3 million of
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higher acquisition costs due to the Cambridge Acquisition and $0.8 million of additional training costs and regional and district manager
salaries related to the 2018 acquisitions, and $2.8 million of restaurant and corporate administrative costs from the Cambridge Acquisition
offset in part by lower administrative bonus accruals.

In the first six months of 2019, general and administrative expenses increased $8.2 million to $40.3 million and, as a percentage of total
restaurant sales, increased to 6.1% from 5.6% in the first six months of 2019. The increase in total general and administrative expenses was due
primarily to $3.8 million of higher acquisition costs due to the Cambridge Acquisition, $2.8 million of restaurant and corporate administrative
expenses from the Cambridge Acquisition and additional training costs and regional and district manager salaries related to the 2018
acquisitions.

Adjusted EBITDA. As a result of the factors above, Adjusted EBITDA decreased to $23.8 million in the second quarter of 2019 from
$32.8 million in the second quarter of 2018, and, as a percentage of total restaurant sales, decreased to 6.5% in the second quarter of 2019 from
10.8% in the prior year period. Adjusted EBITDA decreased to $36.9 million in the first six months of 2019 from $51.7 million in the first six
months of 2018.

For a reconciliation between net income (loss) and EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA see page 36.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.5 million to $17.1 million in the second
quarter of 2019 from $14.6 million in the second quarter of 2018 and increased $3.5 million due primarily to our acquisition of restaurants in
2018 and 2019, newly constructed restaurants and ongoing remodeling initiatives.

Impairment and Other Lease Charges. Impairment and other lease charges were $0.4 million in the second quarter of 2019 consisting of
$0.2 million for one underperforming restaurant, capital expenditures of $0.1 million at previously impaired restaurants, and $0.1 million
associated with the closure of one underperforming restaurant. Impairment and other lease charges were $1.3 million in the first six months of
2019, which included $0.9 million related to impairment charges for three underperforming restaurants, capital expenditures of $0.2 million at
underperforming restaurants and $0.2 million of other lease charges.

During the second quarter of 2018, impairment and other lease charges of $2.9 million included $1.9 million related to the write-off of
defective product holding unit kitchen equipment that was replaced, a loss of $0.6 million associated with a sale-leaseback of a restaurant
property, and $0.4 million of capital expenditures at underperforming restaurants. During the first six months of 2019, the company also
recorded impairment and other lease charges of $0.1 million associated with the closure of two underperforming restaurants.

Gain on Bargain Purchase. During the first six months of 2018, we recorded a $0.2 million gain related to our acquisition of one
restaurant. The acquisition resulted in a bargain purchase gain because the fair value of assets acquired exceeded the total fair value of
consideration paid.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt. The Company recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $7.4 million during the three and six
months ended June 30, 2019, in connection with the refinancing of 8% Notes. The loss consisted of the write-off of unamortized debt costs,
unamortized bond premium and additional redemption fees.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased to $6.9 million in the second quarter of 2019 from $5.9 million in the second quarter of 2018
and increased to $12.8 million in the first six months of 2019 from $11.8 million in the first six months of 2018 due to a $150.0 million increase
in outstanding borrowings under the Term Loan B Facility as compared to the 8.0% Notes which were outstanding in the second quarter of
2018, and $25.0 million of outstanding revolving credit borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility in the second quarter of 2019. This
increase was offset in part by lower interest rates on our outstanding borrowings. The weighted average interest rate on our long-term debt,
excluding lease financing obligations, was 6.3% and 7.0% in the second quarter of 2019 and first six months of 2019, respectively, compared to
7.9% in both the second quarter and first six months of 2018.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. The provision (benefit) for income taxes for both the second quarter and first six months of 2019
was derived using an estimated effective annual income tax rate for all of 2019 of 35.1%, excluding any discrete tax adjustments. The
difference compared to the statutory rate for 2019 is attributable to
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approximately $3.0 million of non-deductible acquisition costs incurred during the year and the benefits of federal employment credits which
are not directly related to the amount of pre-tax loss recorded in a period.

For all of 2018, the estimated effective annual income tax rate was estimated at 1.5% which excludes any discrete tax adjustments. The
effective tax rate is below the statutory tax rate due to the effect of fixed employment tax credits on taxable income.

The income tax provision for the first six months of 2019 and 2018 contain net discrete tax adjustments of $0.1 million of tax expense in
each period.

Net Income (Loss). As a result of the above, net loss for the second quarter of 2019 was $3.7 million, or a loss of $0.09 per diluted share,
compared to net income in the second quarter of 2018 of $7.8 million, or $0.17 per diluted share. Net loss for first six months of 2019 was
$15.2 million, or a loss of $0.39 per diluted share, compared to net income in first six months of 2018 of $4.7 million, or $0.10 per diluted
share.
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Reconciliations of net income (loss) to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted net income (loss), and income (loss) from operations to
Restaurant-Level EBITDA for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2018 are as follows (in thousands, except for per share
data):

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended
Reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA: June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018  June 30, 2019  July 1, 2018
Net income (loss) $ (3,732)  $ 7,788  $ (15,201)  $ 4,686
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (8,508)  336  (8,154)  198
Interest expense 6,900  5,917  12,847  11,843
Depreciation and amortization 17,121  14,621  32,413  28,871

EBITDA 11,781  28,662  21,905  45,598
Impairment and other lease charges 367  2,881  1,277  3,190
Acquisition costs (1) 1,366  89  4,022  194
Integration costs (2) 1,207  —  1,207  —
Other expense (income), net (3) 376  —  (1,753)  —
Gain on bargain purchase —  (208)  —  (230)
Stock-based compensation expense 1,282  1,385  2,808  2,970
Loss on extinguishment of debt 7,443  —  7,443  —

Adjusted EBITDA $ 23,822  $ 32,809  $ 36,909  $ 51,722

Reconciliation of Restaurant-Level EBITDA:        
Income (loss) from operations $ 2,103  $ 13,833  $ (3,065)  $ 16,497
Add:        

General and administrative expenses 20,620  16,020  40,344  32,156
Integration costs (2) 406  —  406  —
Depreciation and amortization 17,121  14,621  32,413  28,871
Impairment and other lease charges 367 2,881  1,277  3,190
Other expense (income), net (3) 376 —  (1,753)  —

Restaurant-Level EBITDA $ 40,993  $ 47,355  $ 69,622  $ 80,714

Reconciliation of Adjusted net income (loss):        
Net income (loss) $ (3,732)  $ 7,788  $ (15,201)  $ 4,686
Add:        

Loss on extinguishment of debt 7,443  —  7,443  —
Impairment and other lease charges 367  2,881  1,277  3,190
Acquisition costs (1) 1,366  89  4,022  194
Integration costs (2) 1,207  —  1,207  —
Other expense (income), net (3) 376  —  (1,753)  —
Gain on bargain purchase —  (208)  —  (230)
Income tax effect on above adjustments (4) (2,690)  (580)  (3,049)  (662)

Adjusted net income (loss) $ 4,337  $ 9,970  $ (6,054)  $ 7,178

Adjusted diluted net income (loss) per share (5) $ 0.07  $ 0.22  $ (0.16)  $ 0.16

(1) Acquisition costs include legal and professional fees incurred in connection with restaurant acquisitions.

(2) Integration costs include $1.2 million for certain professional fees, corporate payroll, and other costs related to the integration of the Cambridge
Acquisition and $0.4 million of one-time repairs and maintenance costs which are included in Restaurant-Level EBITDA.
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(3) Other expense, net for the three months ended June 30, 2019, included a loss on the disposal of restaurant equipment of $0.5 million and a $0.1 million
gain on a sale-leaseback transaction. In the six months ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded other income of $1.8 million which consisted of a
$1.9 million gain from a settlement with BKC for their approval of new restaurant development by other franchisees which unfavorably impacted the
Company's restaurants, a $0.1 million gain on two sale-leaseback transactions, a $0.1 million gain related to an insurance recovery from a fire at one of
its restaurants in the prior year and a loss on a disposal of restaurant equipment of $0.5 million.

(4) The income tax effect related to the adjustments for impairment and other lease charges, gain on bargain purchase, loss on extinguishment of debt, other
income (expense) and acquisition costs during the periods presented was calculated using an effective income tax rate of 25% for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2019 and 21% for the three and six months ended July 1, 2018, respectively.

(5) Adjusted diluted net income (loss) per share is calculated based on Adjusted net income (loss) and the dilutive weighted average common shares
outstanding for the respective periods, where applicable.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We do not have significant receivables or inventory and receive trade credit based upon negotiated terms in purchasing food products and
other supplies. We are able to operate with a substantial working capital deficit because:

• restaurant operations are primarily conducted on a cash basis;
• rapid turnover results in a limited investment in inventories; and
• cash from sales is usually received before related liabilities for food, supplies and payroll are paid.

Interest payments under our debt obligations, capital expenditures including our remodeling initiatives, payments of royalties and
advertising to BKC and RBI and payments related to our lease obligations represent significant liquidity requirements for us, as well as any
discretionary expenditures for the acquisition or development of additional Burger King and Popeyes restaurants. We believe our cash balances,
cash generated from our operations and availability of revolving credit borrowings under our new Senior Credit Facilities will provide
sufficient cash availability to cover our anticipated working capital needs, capital expenditures and debt service requirements for the next
twelve months.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities in the first six months of 2019 decreased to $10.8 million from $38.8
million in the first six months of 2018 due primarily to a decrease in Adjusted EBITDA of $14.8 million combined with an increase of $8.3
million in deferred income taxes.

Investing Activities. Net cash used for investing activities in the first six months of 2019 and 2018 was $166.3 million and $31.7 million,
respectively. In the first six months of 2019, we completed the Cambridge Acquisition and also acquired thirteen Burger King restaurants from
another franchisee, received net proceeds of $4.6 million from one sale-leaseback transaction and received $0.1 million of proceeds from an
insurance recovery related to a fire at one of our restaurants in 2019.

The first six months of 2018 included the purchase of certain restaurant properties to be sold in sale-leaseback transactions for $2.1
million. Investing activities in the first six months of 2018 also included net proceeds of $2.9 million related to two sale-leaseback transactions
completed for properties purchased in 2017.

Capital expenditures are a large component of our investing activities and include: (1) new restaurant development, which may include the
purchase of real estate; (2) restaurant remodeling, which includes the renovation or rebuilding of the interior and exterior of our existing
restaurants including expenditures associated with our franchise agreement renewals and certain restaurants that we acquire; (3) other restaurant
capital expenditures, which include capital maintenance expenditures for the ongoing reinvestment and enhancement of our restaurants, and
from time to time, to support RBI’s initiatives; and (4) corporate and restaurant information systems, including expenditures for our point-of-
sale systems for restaurants that we acquire.
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The following table sets forth our capital expenditures for the periods presented (in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30, 2019   
New restaurant development  $ 19,120
Restaurant remodeling  12,990
Other restaurant capital expenditures  8,784
Corporate and restaurant information systems  2,198

Total capital expenditures  $ 43,092
Six Months Ended July 1, 2018   

New restaurant development  $ 12,157
Restaurant remodeling  10,995
Other restaurant capital expenditures  7,973
Corporate and restaurant information systems  1,338

Total capital expenditures  $ 32,463

Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities in the first six months of 2019 was $154.9 million due primarily to
borrowings from the Term B Facility of $422.9 million, net revolving credit borrowings of $25.0 million under the Revolving Credit Facility,
redemption of the 8.0% Notes, principal payments on finance leases of $1.0 million and costs associated with the New Senior Credit Facilities
of $11.5 million which closed on April 30, 2019. Net cash provided by financing activities in the first six months of 2018 was $1.7 million due
primarily to revolving credit borrowings of $4.5 million under the prior senior credit facility net of principal payments on finance leases of $0.9
million.

New Senior Credit Facility. On April 30, 2019, we entered into a New Senior Credit Facilities in an aggregate principal amount of $550.0
million, consisting of (i) a Term Loan B Facility in an aggregate principal amount of $425.0 million maturing on April 30, 2026 and (ii) a
Revolving Credit Facilities in an aggregate principal amount of $125.0 million maturing on April 30, 2024.

The net proceeds from borrowings under the Term Loan B Facility were $422.9 million after original issue discount and were used to (i)
refinance the indebtedness of Carrols, including redemption of $275.0 million of 8.0% Notes and accrued interest thereon at a redemption price
of 102%, (ii) the retirement of Cambridge indebtedness and (iii) the payment of fees and expenses in connection with the Cambridge
Acquisition and New Senior Credit Facilities. The proceeds of the Revolving Credit Facility will finance ongoing working capital and other
general corporate purposes, including permitted acquisitions and required expenditures under development agreements. In connection with
these transactions, the Company recognized a loss of $7.4 million on the extinguishment of debt.

Borrowings under the New Senior Credit Facilities bear interest, at a rate per annum equal to (i) the Alternate Base Rate (as defined in the
New Senior Credit Facilities) plus 2.25% or (b) LIBOR Rate (as defined in the New Senior Credit Facilities) plus 3.25%. At June 30, 2019 the
Company's LIBOR Rate margin was 3.25% and the Alternate Base Rate margin was 2.25%.

The Term Loan B borrowings are due and payable in quarterly installments, beginning on September 30, 2019 as follows:

(i) twenty-seven quarterly installments of $1.1 million;
(ii) one final payment of $396.3 million on April 30, 2026.

As of June 30, 2019, there were $25.0 million of revolving credit borrowings outstanding and $11.7 million of letters of credit issued
under the Revolving Credit Facility. After reserving for issued letters of credit and outstanding revolving credit borrowings, $88.3 million was
available for revolving credit borrowings at June 30, 2019 under the Revolving Credit Facility. We were in compliance with the financial
covenants under our New Senior Credit Facilities at June 30, 2019.

Prior Senior Credit Facility. On May 30, 2012, we entered into a senior credit facility (the "prior senior credit facility"), which was most
recently amended on June 20, 2017 to increase the permitted indebtedness of our second
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lien notes to a principal amount not to exceed $300.0 million in order to provide for the additional $75 million principal amount of the 8%
Notes issued on June 23, 2017. Previously, on January 13, 2017, we entered into an amendment to our prior senior credit facility to, among
other things, increase maximum revolving credit borrowings to $125.0 million (including $20.0 million available for letters of credit). The prior
senior credit facility also provided for potential incremental borrowing increases of up to $25.0 million, in the aggregate.

Borrowings under the prior senior credit facility bore interest at a rate per annum, at our option, of:
(i) the Alternate Base Rate plus the applicable margin of 1.75% to 2.75% based on our Adjusted Leverage Ratio, or
(ii) the LIBOR Rate plus the applicable margin of 2.75% to 3.75% based on our Adjusted Leverage Ratio (all terms as defined under the

prior senior credit facility).

Our obligations under the prior senior credit facility were jointly and severally guaranteed by our subsidiaries and were secured by first
priority liens on substantially all of our assets, including a pledge of all of the capital stock and equity interests of our subsidiaries.

Under the prior senior credit facility, we were required to make mandatory prepayments of borrowings in the event of dispositions of
assets, debt issuances and insurance and condemnation proceeds (all subject to certain exceptions).

The prior senior credit facility contained certain covenants, including without limitation, those limiting our and our subsidiaries' ability to,
among other things, incur indebtedness, incur liens, sell or acquire assets or businesses, change the character of its business in all material
respects, engage in transactions with related parties, make certain investments, make certain restricted payments or pay dividends. In addition,
the prior senior credit facility required us to meet certain financial ratios, including a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio, Adjusted Leverage Ratio
and First Lien Leverage Ratio (all as defined under the amended senior credit facility).

The prior senior credit facility contained customary default provisions, including that the lenders may terminate their obligation to
advance and may declare the unpaid balance of borrowings, or any part thereof, immediately due and payable upon the occurrence and during
the continuance of customary defaults which include, without limitation, payment default, covenant defaults, bankruptcy type defaults, cross-
defaults on other indebtedness, judgments or upon the occurrence of a change of control.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commitments as of June 30, 2019 (in thousands):

  Payments due by period

Contractual Obligations  Total  
Less than

1 Year  
1 – 3
Years  

3 – 5
Years  

More than
5 Years

Long-term debt obligations, including interest (1)  $ 625,604  $ 20,311  $ 60,494  $ 59,513  $ 485,286
Finance lease obligations, including interest (2)  4,019  1,244  2,338  308  129
Operating lease obligations (3)  1,323,275  47,846  185,971  181,908  907,550
Lease financing obligations, including interest (4)  1,613  54  218  1,341  —

Total contractual obligations  $ 1,954,511  $ 69,455  $ 249,021  $ 243,070  $ 1,392,965

(1) Our long term debt at June 30, 2019 included $425.0 million of borrowings under the Term Loan B Facility and $25.0 million of borrowings under the
Revolving Credit Facility. Total interest payments on the Term Loan B Facility of $165.3 million for all years presented are included at the coupon
rate of 5.74%. Interest payments on our outstanding revolving credit borrowings are variable in nature and have been calculated using an assumed
interest rate of 7.75% for each year.

(2) Includes total interest of $0.4 million for all years presented.
(3) Includes total interest of $506.5 million for all years presented.
(4) Includes total interest of $0.4 million for all years presented.
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As shown above, effective December 31, 2018, the first day of fiscal 2019, we adopted ASC Topic 842, Leases, which resulted in
recognition of additional net lease liabilities of approximately $542.9 million. Refer to to Item 1. Financial Statements – Note 6 – Leases for
additional information regarding the adoption of ASC Topic 842.

Inflation

The inflationary factors that have historically affected our results of operations include increases in food and paper costs, labor and other
operating expenses, the cost of providing medical and prescription drug insurance to our employees and energy costs. Wages paid in our
restaurants are impacted by changes in the Federal and state hourly minimum wage rates and the Fair Labor Standards Act. Accordingly,
changes in the Federal and state hourly minimum wage rates and increases in the wage level to not be considered an hourly employee will
directly affect our labor costs. We typically attempt to offset the effect of inflation, at least in part, through periodic menu price increases and
various cost reduction programs. However, no assurance can be given that we will be able to offset such inflationary cost increases in the
future.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Preparing consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected by the
application of our accounting policies. Our significant accounting policies are described in the “Significant Accounting Policies” footnote in the
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2018.
Critical accounting estimates are those that require application of management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a
result of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods. Except as set forth below, there have been no material
changes affecting our critical accounting policies previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2018.

Effective December 31, 2018, the first day of fiscal 2019, we adopted ASC Topic 842, Leases, which resulted in changes to our critical
accounting policy relating to lease accounting. Refer to Item 1. Financial Statements – Note 1 – Basis of Presentation for additional information
regarding the new and updated policies as a result of the adoption of ASC Topic 842.

Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains statements which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”). Statements that are predictive in nature or that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions are forward-looking
statements. These statements are often identified by the words “may”, “might", “will”, “should”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “intend”,
“estimate”, “hope”, “plan” or similar expressions. In addition, expressions of our strategies, intentions or plans are also forward looking
statements. These statements reflect management’s current views with respect to future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties, both
known and unknown. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of their date.
There are important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements, many of which are
beyond our control. Investors are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially from those projected or implied in the forward-looking statements. We have
identified significant factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those stated or implied in the forward-looking statements.
We believe important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include the following, in addition to
other risks and uncertainties discussed herein and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2018:

• Effectiveness of the Burger King®and Popeyes®advertising programs and the overall success of the Burger King and Popeyes brands;
• Increases in food costs and other commodity costs;
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• Competitive conditions, including pricing pressures, couponing, aggressive marketing and the potential impact of competitors new unit
openings on sales of our restaurants;

• Our ability to integrate any restaurants we acquire;
• Regulatory factors;
• Environmental conditions and regulations;
• General economic conditions, particularly in the retail sector;
• Weather conditions;
• Fuel prices;
• Significant disruptions in service or supply by any of our suppliers or distributors;
• Changes in consumer perception of dietary health and food safety;
• Labor and employment benefit costs, including the effects of minimum wage increases, health care reform and changes in the Fair

Labor Standards Act;
• The outcome of pending or future legal claims or proceedings;
• Our ability to manage our growth and successfully implement our business strategy;
• Our inability to service our indebtedness;
• Our borrowing costs and credit ratings, which may be influenced by the credit ratings of our competitors;
• The availability and terms of necessary or desirable financing or refinancing and other related risks and uncertainties; and
• Factors that affect the restaurant industry generally, including recalls if products become adulterated or misbranded, liability if our

products cause injury, ingredient disclosure and labeling laws and regulations, reports of cases of food borne illnesses such as "mad
cow" disease, and the possibility that consumers could lose confidence in the safety and quality of certain food products, as well as
negative publicity regarding food quality, illness, injury or other health concerns.

ITEM 3—QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There were no material changes from the information presented in Item 7A included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 30, 2018 with respect to our market risk sensitive instruments.

A 1% change in interest rates would have resulted in a $0.7 million and $0.8 million change to interest expense for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2019, respectively, and a nominal change to the three and six months ended July 1, 2018, respectively.

ITEM 4—CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our senior management is responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d – 15(e) under the Exchange Act), designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the issuer’s management, including its principal executive officer or officers and principal
financial officer or officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. We have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report, with the participation of
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as well as
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other key members of our management. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2019.

We acquired Cambridge in the Cambridge Acquisition on April 30, 2019 and have not yet included Cambridge in our assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, pursuant to the SEC's general guidance that an assessment of a
recently acquired business may be omitted from the scope of an assessment in the year of acquisition, the scope of our assessment of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures does not include Cambridge. For the second quarter of 2019, Cambridge accounted for
$50.7 million of our total net sales, and as of June 30, 2019, had total assets of $394.5 million.

Changes in Internal Control. During the three months ended June 30, 2019, we did not make any changes in our internal control over
financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are a party to various litigation matters that arise in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that the outcome of any of these
other matters meet the disclosure or recognition standards, nor will they have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below, as well as other information and data included in this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q. Any of the following risks could materially adversely affect our business, consolidated financial condition or results of operations.
Risks Related to Our Business
 
Intense competition in the restaurant industry could make it more difficult to profitably expand our business and could also have a negative
impact on our operating results if customers favor our competitors or we are forced to change our pricing and other marketing strategies.
 
The restaurant industry is highly competitive. In each of our markets, our restaurants compete with a large number of national and regional
restaurant chains, as well as locally owned restaurants, offering low and medium-priced fare. We also compete with other convenience stores,
delicatessens and prepared food counters in grocery stores, supermarkets, cafeterias and other purveyors of moderately priced and quickly
prepared food. We believe our largest competitors for our Burger King restaurants are McDonald’s and Wendy’s restaurants and its largest
competitor for its Popeyes restaurants is KFC.
 
Due to competitive conditions, we, as well as certain of the other major quick-service restaurant chains, have offered select food items and
combination meals at discounted prices. These pricing and marketing strategies have had, and in the future may have, a negative impact on our
sales and earnings.
 
Factors applicable to the quick-service restaurant segment may adversely affect our results of operations, which may cause a decrease in
earnings and revenues.
 
The quick-service restaurant segment is highly competitive and can be materially adversely affected by many factors, including:

• changes in local, regional or national economic conditions;
• changes in demographic trends;
• changes in consumer tastes;
• changes in traffic patterns;
• increases in fuel prices and utility costs;
• consumer concerns about health, diet and nutrition;
• increases in the number of, and particular locations of, competing restaurants;
• changes in discretionary consumer spending;
• inflation;
• increases in the cost of food, such as beef, chicken, produce and packaging;
• increased labor costs, including healthcare, unemployment insurance and minimum wage requirements;
• the availability of experienced management and hourly-paid employees; and
• regional weather conditions.

  
We are highly dependent on the Burger King system and the Popeyes system and our ability to renew our franchise agreements with BKC
and PLK. The failure to renew our franchise agreements or Burger King or Popeyes failure to compete effectively would materially
adversely affect our results of operations.
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Due to the nature of franchising and our agreements with BKC and PLK, our success is, to a large extent, directly related to the success of the
Burger King and Popeyes system including its financial condition, advertising programs, new products, overall quality of operations and the
successful and consistent operation of Burger King and Popeyes restaurants owned by other franchisees. We cannot assure you that Burger
King or Popeyes restaurants will be able to compete effectively with other restaurants. As a result, any failure of the Burger King system or
Popeyes system to compete effectively would likely have a material adverse effect on our operating results.
 
Under each of our franchise agreements, we are required to comply with operational programs established by BKC or PLK. For example, our
franchise agreements with BKC and PLK require that our restaurants comply with specified design criteria. In addition, BKC generally has the
right to require us during the tenth year of a franchise agreement to remodel our restaurants to conform to the then-current image of Burger
King restaurants, and PLK generally has the right to require us to remodel our restaurants to conform to the then-current image of the Popeyes
restaurants every six years, all of which may require the expenditure of considerable funds. In addition we may not be able to avoid adopting
menu price discount promotions or permanent menu price decreases instituted by BKC or PLK that may be unprofitable.
 
Our BKC franchise agreements typically have a 20-year term after which BKC’s consent is required to receive a successor franchise agreement.
Our PLK franchise agreements typically have a 20-year term after which we have the options to (a) renew for a 10 year renewal term and (b)
renew for a second supplemental renewal term of 10 years provided that we meet certain conditions as set forth in the PLK franchise
agreements.
 
We cannot assure you that BKC will grant each of our future requests for successor franchise agreements or that we will exercise any of the
options to renew the PLK franchise agreements. Any failure of BKC to renew our franchise agreements could adversely affect our operating
results. In addition, as a condition of approval of a successor franchise agreement, BKC may require us to make capital improvements to
particular restaurants to bring them up to current image standards established by Burger King, which may require us to incur substantial costs.
Additionally, one of the conditions to our exercise of the options to renew our PLK franchise agreements is that we must make capital
improvements to particular restaurants to bring them up to current image standards established by Popeyes, which may require us to incur
substantial costs.
 
In addition, our franchise agreements with BKC and PLK do not give us exclusive rights to operate Burger King or Popeyes restaurants in any
defined territory. Although we believe that BKC and PLK generally seeks to ensure that newly granted franchises do not materially adversely
affect the operations of existing restaurants, we cannot assure you that franchises granted by BKC or PLK to third parties will not adversely
affect any restaurants that we operate.
 
Additionally, as a franchisee, we have no control over the Burger King brand or the Popeyes brand. If BKC does not adequately protect the
Burger King brand and other intellectual property, or if PLK does not adequately protect the Popeyes brand and other intellectual property, our
competitive position and operating results could be harmed.

Our strategy includes pursuing acquisitions of additional Burger King and Popeyes restaurants and we may not find Burger King
restaurants or Popeyes restaurants that are suitable acquisition candidates or successfully operate or integrate any Burger King restaurants
or Popeyes restaurants that we may acquire.
 
As part of our strategy, we intend to pursue the acquisition of additional Burger King and Popeyes restaurants. Pursuant to the Area
Development Agreement, BKC assigned to us its ROFR under its franchise agreements with its franchisees to purchase all of the assets of a
Burger King restaurant or all or substantially all of the voting stock of the franchisee, whether direct or indirect, on the same terms proposed
between such franchisee and a third party purchaser in 16 states as follows: Arkansas, Indiana, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland,
Michigan, Mississippi, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, Tennessee, Vermont and Virginia (subject to certain
exceptions for certain limited geographic areas within certain states) and a limited number of counties in four additional states and granted us
franchise pre-approval to acquire Burger King restaurants from Burger King franchisees until we acquire more than 500 Burger King
restaurants. In addition, we assumed a development agreement for Popeyes®, which includes a right of first refusal for acquisitions
in two southern states.
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Although we believe that opportunities for future acquisitions may be available from time to time, competition for acquisition candidates may
exist or increase in the future. Consequently, there may be fewer acquisition opportunities available to us at an attractive acquisition price.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to identify, acquire, manage or successfully integrate additional restaurants without substantial
costs, delays or operational or financial problems. In the event we are able to acquire additional restaurants, the integration and operation of the
acquired restaurants may place significant demands on our management, which could adversely affect our ability to manage our existing
restaurants. We may be required to obtain additional financing to fund future acquisitions. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
obtain additional financing, if necessary, on acceptable terms or at all. Our New Senior Credit Facilities contain restrictive covenants that may
prevent us from incurring additional debt to acquire additional Burger King or Popeyes restaurants.
 
We may experience difficulties in integrating restaurants acquired by us into our existing business.
 
The acquisition of a significant number of restaurants will involve the integration of those acquired restaurants with our existing business. The
difficulties of integration include:

• coordinating and consolidating geographically separated systems and facilities;
• integrating the management and personnel of the acquired restaurants, maintaining employee morale and retaining key employees;
• implementing our management information systems; and
• implementing operational procedures and disciplines to control costs and increase profitability.

 
The process of integrating operations could cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities of our business and the loss of key
personnel. The diversion of management’s attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with the acquisition of restaurants
and integration of acquired restaurants’ operations could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
 
Achieving the anticipated benefits of the acquisition of additional restaurants will depend in part upon whether we can integrate any acquired
restaurants in an efficient and effective manner. We may not accomplish this integration process smoothly or successfully. If management is
unable to successfully integrate acquired restaurants, the anticipated benefits of the acquisition may not be realized.
 
In our evaluation of our recent and potential acquisitions, assumptions are made as to our ability to increase sales as well as improve restaurant-
level profitability particularly in the areas of food, labor and cash controls as well as other operating expenses. If we are not able to make such
improvements in these operational areas as planned, the acquired restaurants’ targeted profitability levels will be affected which could cause an
adverse effect on our overall financial results and financial condition.
 
The combined companies may not realize the anticipated benefits from the Cambridge Acquisition.
 
The Cambridge Acquisition involved the integration of two companies that have previously operated independently. We expect the combined
companies to result in financial and operational benefits, including increased cost savings and other financial and operating benefits from the
Cambridge Acquisition. There can be no assurance, however, regarding when or the extent to which the combined companies will be able to
realize these increased cost savings or benefits. The companies must integrate or, in some cases, replace numerous systems, including those
involving management information, purchasing, accounting and finance, sales, billing, employee benefits, payroll and regulatory compliance,
many of which are dissimilar. Difficulties associated with integrating the Cambridge restaurants and infrastructure could have a material
adverse effect on the combined companies and the market price of our common stock.

We will incur significant transaction and merger-related costs.
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We have incurred and expect to continue to incur a number of non-recurring costs associated with combining the operations of the two
companies. Although we expect that the elimination of duplicative costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies related to the integration
of the businesses, may offset incremental transaction and transaction-related costs over time, this net benefit may not be achieved in the near
term, or at all.

We could be adversely affected by food-borne illnesses, as well as widespread negative publicity regarding food quality, illness, injury or
other health concerns.
 
Negative publicity about food quality, illness, injury or other health concerns (including health implications of obesity) or similar issues
stemming from one restaurant or a number of restaurants could materially adversely affect us, regardless of whether they pertain to our own
restaurants, other Burger King restaurants, other Popeyes restaurants or to restaurants owned or operated by other companies. For example,
health concerns about the consumption of beef, chicken or eggs or by specific events such as the outbreak of “mad cow” disease could lead to
changes in consumer preferences, reduce consumption of our products and adversely affect our financial performance. These events could also
reduce available supply or significantly raise the price of beef, chicken or eggs.
 
In addition, we cannot guarantee that our operational controls and employee training will be effective in preventing food-borne illnesses, food
tampering and other food safety issues that may affect our restaurants. Food-borne illness or food tampering incidents could be caused by
customers, employees or food suppliers and transporters and, therefore, could be outside of our control. Any publicity relating to health
concerns or the perceived or specific outbreaks of food-borne illnesses, food tampering or other food safety issues attributed to one or more of
our restaurants, could result in a significant decrease in guest traffic in all of our restaurants and could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations. In addition, similar publicity or occurrences with respect to other restaurants or restaurant chains could also decrease our
guest traffic and have a similar material adverse effect on our business.

We may incur significant liability or reputational harm if claims are brought against us, the Burger King brand or the Popeyes brand.
 
We may be subject to complaints, regulatory proceedings or litigation from guests or other persons alleging food-related illness, injuries
suffered in our premises or other food quality, health or operational concerns, including environmental claims. In addition, in recent years a
number of restaurant companies have been subject to lawsuits, including class action lawsuits, alleging, among other things, violations of
federal and state law regarding workplace and employment matters, discrimination, harassment, wrongful termination and wage, rest break,
meal break and overtime compensation issues and, in the case of quick-service restaurants, alleging that they have failed to disclose the health
risks associated with high fat or high sodium foods and that their marketing practices have encouraged obesity. We may also be subject to
litigation or other actions initiated by governmental authorities or our employees, among others, based upon these and other matters. Adverse
publicity resulting from such allegations or occurrences or alleged discrimination or other operating issues stemming from one or a number of
our locations could adversely affect our business, regardless of whether the allegations are true, or whether we are ultimately held liable. Any
cases filed against us could materially adversely affect us if we lose such cases and have to pay substantial damages or if we settle such cases.
In addition, any such cases may materially and adversely affect our operations by increasing our litigation costs and diverting our attention and
resources to address such actions. In addition, if a claim is successful, our insurance coverage may not cover or be adequate to cover all
liabilities or losses and we may not be able to continue to maintain such insurance, or to obtain comparable insurance at a reasonable cost, if at
all. If we suffer losses, liabilities or loss of income in excess of our insurance coverage or if our insurance does not cover such loss, liability or
loss of income, there could be a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Changes in consumer taste could negatively impact our business.
 
We obtain a significant portion of our revenues from the sale of hamburgers, fried chicken and various types of sandwiches. If consumer
preferences for these types of foods change, it could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. The quick-service restaurant
segment is characterized by the frequent introduction of new products, often supported by substantial promotional campaigns, and is subject to
changing consumer preferences, tastes, and
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eating and purchasing habits. Our success depends on BKC’s and PLK's ability to anticipate and respond to changing consumer preferences,
tastes and dining and purchasing habits, as well as other factors affecting the restaurant industry, including new market entrants and
demographic changes. BKC or PLK may be forced to make changes to our menu items in order to respond to changes in consumer tastes or
dining patterns, and we may lose customers who do not prefer the new menu items. In recent years, numerous companies in the quick-service
restaurant segments have introduced products positioned to capitalize on the growing consumer preference for food products that are, or are
perceived to be, promoting good health, nutritious, low in calories and low in fat content. If BKC or PLK does not continually develop and
successfully introduce new menu offerings that appeal to changing consumer preferences or if the Burger King system or Popeyes system does
not timely capitalize on new products, our operating results could suffer. In addition, any significant event that adversely affects consumption of
our products, such as cost, changing tastes or health concerns, could adversely affect our financial performance.

 If a significant disruption in service or supply by any of our suppliers or distributors were to occur, it could create disruptions in the
operations of our restaurants, which could have a material adverse effect on our business.
 
Our financial performance depends on our continuing ability to offer fresh, quality food at competitive prices. If a significant disruption in
service or supply by our suppliers or distributors were to occur, it could create disruptions in the operations of our restaurants, which could have
a material adverse effect on us.
 
We are a member of a national purchasing cooperative, Restaurant Services, Inc., which serves as the purchasing agent for approved
distributors to the Burger King system. We are required to purchase all of our food products, paper goods and packaging materials from BKC-
approved suppliers. We currently utilize mostly three distributors for our restaurants, Maines Paper & Food Service, Inc., McLane Company
Inc., and Reinhart Food Service L.L.C., to supply our restaurants in various geographical areas. As of June 30, 2019, such distributors supplied
39%, 28%, and 28%, respectively of our restaurants. Although we believe that we have alternative sources of supply, in the event any
distributors or suppliers are unable to service us, this could lead to a disruption of service or supply until a new distributor or supplier is
engaged, which could have an adverse effect on our business. 

If labor costs increase, we may not be able to make a corresponding increase in our prices and our operating results may be adversely
affected.
 
Wage rates for a number of our employees are either at or slightly above the federal and or state minimum wage rates. As federal and/or state
minimum wage rates increase, we may need to increase not only the wage rates of our minimum wage employees but also the wages paid to the
employees at wage rates which are above the minimum wage, which will increase our costs. The extent to which we are not able to raise our
prices to compensate for increases in wage rates, including increases in state unemployment insurance costs or other costs including mandated
health insurance, could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. In addition, even if minimum wage rates do not increase, we
may still be required to raise wage rates in order to compete for an adequate supply of labor for our restaurants.

Higher labor costs due to statutory and regulatory changes could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.
 
We are subject to the federal labor laws, including the Fair Labor Standards Act, as well as various state and local laws governing such matters
as minimum wages, labor relations, workplace safety, citizenship requirements and other working conditions for employees. Federal, state and
local laws may also require us to provide paid and unpaid leave, healthcare, or other benefits to our employees. Changes in the law, or penalties
associated with any failure on our part to comply with legal requirements, could increase our labor costs or result in additional expense.
 
During 2018, certain workers were able to take up to eight weeks (increasing in New York and other areas to twelve weeks in 2021) of
employer-provided paid leave for childbirth, care for a seriously ill family member or needs related to a family member’s military deployment.
These additional expenses may cause us to raise our prices. In certain geographic areas which cannot absorb such increases, this could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition; results of operations and/or cash flows. We provide unpaid leave for employees for
covered family and
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medical reasons, including childbirth, to the extent required by the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, and applicable state
laws. To the extent we need to hire additional employees or pay overtime for such employees on leave, this would be an added expense which
could adversely affect our results of operations.
 
Increases in income tax rates or changes in income tax laws could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations.
 
Increases in income tax rates in the United States or other changes in income tax laws in any particular jurisdiction could reduce our after-tax
income arising in such jurisdiction and could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. The United States
recently made changes to existing tax laws in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”) which was signed into law on December 22, 2017.
Among its many provisions, the Tax Act reduced the U.S. Federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% and imposed limitations on the
deductibility of interest and certain other corporate deductions. Additional changes in the U.S. tax regime, including changes in how existing
tax laws are interpreted or enforced, could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.
 
The efficiency and quality of our competitors’ advertising and promotional programs and the extent and cost of our advertising could have
a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
 
The success of our restaurants depends in part upon the effectiveness of the advertising campaigns and promotions by BKC or PLK. If our
competitors increase spending on advertising and promotion, or the cost of television or radio advertising increases, or BKC’s, PLK's, or our
advertising and promotions are less effective than our competitors’, there could be a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.
 
Our business is regional and we therefore face risks related to reliance on certain markets as well as risks for other unforeseen events.
 
At June 30, 2019, 16% of our restaurants were located in North Carolina, 12% were located in New York, 11% were located in Tennessee, and
25% were located in Indiana, Ohio and Michigan. Therefore, the economic conditions, state and local government regulations, weather
conditions or other conditions affecting New York, Tennessee, Indiana, Ohio, Michigan, and North Carolina and other unforeseen events,
including terrorism and other national conflicts may have a material impact on the success of our restaurants in those locations.
 
Many of our restaurants are located in regions that may be susceptible to severe weather conditions such as harsh winter weather and
hurricanes. As a result, adverse weather conditions in any of these areas could damage these restaurants, result in fewer guest visits to these
restaurants and otherwise have a material adverse impact on our business.
 
We cannot assure you that the current locations of our restaurants will continue to be economically viable or that additional locations will
be acquired at reasonable costs.
 
The location of our restaurants has significant influence on their success. We cannot assure you that current locations will continue to be
economically viable or that additional locations can be acquired at reasonable costs. In addition, the economic environment where restaurants
are located could decline in the future, which could result in reduced sales for those locations. We cannot assure you that new sites will be
profitable or as profitable as existing sites.

Economic downturns may adversely impact consumer spending patterns.
 
The U.S. economy has in the past experienced significant slowdown and volatility due to uncertainties related to availability of credit,
difficulties in the banking and financial services sectors, softness in the housing market, diminished market liquidity, falling consumer
confidence and high unemployment rates. Our business is dependent to a significant extent on national, regional and local economic conditions,
particularly those that affect our guests that frequently patronize our restaurants. In particular, where our customers’ disposable income is
reduced (such as by job losses, credit constraints and higher housing, tax, energy, interest or other costs) or where the perceived wealth of
customers has decreased (because of circumstances such as lower residential real estate values, increased foreclosure rates,
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increased tax rates or other economic disruptions), our restaurants have in the past experienced, and may in the future experience, lower sales
and customer traffic as customers choose lower-cost alternatives or other alternatives to dining out. The resulting decrease in our customer
traffic or average sales per transaction has had an adverse effect in the past, and could in the future have a material adverse effect, on our
business.
 
The loss of the services of our senior management could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.
 
Our success depends to a large extent upon the continued services of our senior management who have substantial experience in the restaurant
industry. We believe that it could be difficult to replace our senior management with individuals having comparable experience. Consequently,
the loss of the services of members of our senior management could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations.
 
Government regulation could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
 
We are subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to the development and operation of restaurants, including regulations relating to the
following:

• zoning;
• requirements relating to labeling of caloric and other nutritional information on menu boards, advertising and food packaging;
• the preparation and sale of food;
• employer/employee relationships, including minimum wage requirements, overtime, mandatory paid and unpaid leave, working and

safety conditions, and citizenship requirements;
• health care; and
• federal and state laws that prohibit discrimination and laws regulating design and operation of, and access to, facilities, such as the

Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990.
 
In the event that legislation having a negative impact on our business is adopted, it could have a material adverse impact on us. For example,
substantial increases in the minimum wage or state or Federal unemployment taxes could adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations. Local zoning or building codes or regulations can cause substantial delays in our ability to build and open new restaurants. Any
failure to obtain and maintain required licenses, permits and approvals could also adversely affect our operating results.
 
Federal, state and local environmental regulations relating to the use, storage, discharge, emission and disposal of hazardous materials
could expose us to liabilities, which could adversely affect our results of operations.
 
We are subject to a variety of federal, state and local environmental regulations relating to the use, storage, discharge, emission and disposal of
hazardous substances or other regulated materials, release of pollutants into the air, soil and water, and the remediation of contaminated sites.
 
Failure to comply with environmental laws could result in the imposition of fines or penalties, restrictions on operations by governmental
agencies or courts of law, as well as investigatory or remedial liabilities and claims for alleged personal injury or damages to property or natural
resources. Some environmental laws impose strict, and under some circumstances joint and several, liability for costs of investigation and
remediation of contaminated sites on current and prior owners or operators of the sites, as well as those entities that send regulated materials to
the sites. We cannot assure you that we have been or will be at all times in complete compliance with such laws, regulations and permits.
Therefore, our costs of complying with current and future environmental, health and safety laws could adversely affect our results of
operations.
 
We are subject to all of the risks associated with leasing property subject to long-term non-cancelable leases.
 
The leases for our restaurant locations (except for certain acquired restaurants which have an underlying lease term of less than 20 years)
generally have initial terms of 20 years, and typically provide for renewal options in five year
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increments as well as for rent escalations. Generally, our leases are “net” leases, which require us to pay all of the costs of insurance, taxes,
maintenance and utilities. Additional sites that we lease are likely to be subject to similar long-term non-cancelable leases. We generally cannot
cancel our leases. If an existing or future restaurant is not profitable, and we decide to close it, we may nonetheless be obligated to perform our
monetary obligations under the applicable lease including, among other things, paying all amounts due for the balance of the lease term. In
addition, as each of our leases expire, we may fail to negotiate renewals, either on commercially acceptable terms or any terms at all, which
could cause us to close restaurants in desirable locations.
 
 An increase in food costs could adversely affect our operating results.
 
Our profitability and operating margins are dependent in part on our ability to anticipate and react to changes in food costs. Changes in the
price or availability of certain food products could affect our ability to offer broad menu and price offerings to guests and could materially
adversely affect our profitability and reputation. The type, variety, quality and price of beef, chicken, produce and cheese can be subject to
change and to factors beyond our control, including weather, governmental regulation, availability and seasonality, each of which may affect
our food costs or cause a disruption in our supply. Our food distributors or suppliers may also be affected by higher costs to produce and
transport commodities used in our restaurants, higher minimum wage and benefit costs and other expenses that they pass through to their
customers, which could result in higher costs for goods and services supplied to us. Although RSI is able to contract for certain food
commodities for periods up to one year, the pricing and availability of some commodities used in our operations are not locked in for periods of
longer than one week or at all. We do not currently use financial instruments to hedge our risk to market fluctuations in the price of beef,
produce and other food products. We may not be able to anticipate and react to changing food costs through menu price adjustments in the
future, which could negatively impact our results of operations.
 
Security breaches of confidential guest information in connection with our electronic processing of credit and debit card transactions may
adversely affect our business.
 
A significant amount of our restaurant sales are by credit or debit cards. Other restaurants and retailers have experienced security breaches in
which credit and debit card information of their customers was compromised. We may in the future become subject to lawsuits or other
proceedings for purportedly fraudulent transactions arising out of the actual or alleged theft of our guests’ credit or debit card information. Any
such claim or proceeding, or any adverse publicity resulting from these allegations, may have a material adverse effect on us and our
restaurants.
 
We depend on information technology and any material failure of that technology could impair our ability to efficiently operate our
business.
 
We rely on information systems across our operations, including, for example, point-of-sale processing in our restaurants, procurement and
payment to significant suppliers, collection of cash, and payment of other financial obligations and various other processes and procedures. Our
ability to efficiently manage our business depends significantly on the reliability and capacity of these systems. The failure of these systems to
operate effectively, problems with maintenance, upgrading or transitioning to replacement systems or a breach in security of these systems
could cause delays in customer service and reduce efficiency in our operations. Significant capital investments might be required to remediate
any problems.
 
Carrols is currently a guarantor under 27 Fiesta Restaurant Group, Inc. (“Fiesta”) restaurant property leases and the primary lessee on
five Fiesta restaurant property leases, and any default under such property leases by Fiesta may result in substantial liabilities to us.
 
Fiesta, a former wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was spun-off in 2012 to the Company’s stockholders. Carrols currently is a
guarantor under 27 Fiesta restaurant property leases, of which all except for one are still operating as of June 30, 2019. The Separation and
Distribution Agreement, which we refer to as the “separation agreement”, dated as of April 24, 2012 and entered into in connection with the
spin-off among Carrols, Fiesta and us provides that the parties will cooperate and use their commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the release
of such guarantees. Unless
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and until any such guarantees are released, Fiesta agrees to indemnify Carrols for any losses or liabilities or expenses that it may incur arising
from or in connection with any such lease guarantees.
 
Carrols is currently a primary lessee of five Fiesta restaurants which it subleases to Fiesta. The separation agreement provides that the parties
will cooperate and use their commercially reasonable efforts to cause Fiesta or a subsidiary of Fiesta to enter into a new master lease or
individual leases with the lessor with respect to the Fiesta restaurants where Carrols is currently a lessee. The separation agreement provides
that until such new master lease or such individual leases are entered into, (i) Carrols will perform its obligations under the master lease for the
five Fiesta restaurants where it is a lessee and (ii) the parties will cooperate and use their commercially reasonable efforts to enter into a non-
disturbance agreement or similar agreement with the lessor which shall provide that Fiesta or one of its subsidiaries shall become the lessee
under such master lease with respect to such Fiesta restaurants and perform Carrols’ obligations under such master lease in the event of a
breach or default by Carrols.
 
Such guarantees may never be released and a new master lease with respect to the five Fiesta properties where Carrols is the primary lessee
may never be entered into by Fiesta. Any losses or liabilities that may arise in connection such guarantees or the master lease where Carrols is
not able to receive indemnification from Fiesta may result in substantial liabilities to us and could have a material adverse effect on our
business.
 
Risks Related to Our Common Stock
 
The market price of our common stock may be highly volatile or may decline regardless of our operating performance.
 
The trading price of our common stock may fluctuate substantially. The price of our common stock that will prevail in the market may be
higher or lower than the price you pay, depending on many factors, some of which are beyond our control. Broad market and industry factors
may adversely affect the market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance. The fluctuations could cause a loss
of all or part of an investment in our common stock. Factors that could cause fluctuation in the trading price of our common stock may include,
but are not limited to the following:

• price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to time;
• significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of companies generally or restaurant companies;
• actual or anticipated variations in the earnings or operating results of our company or our competitors;
• actual or anticipated changes in financial estimates by us or by any securities analysts who might cover our stock or the stock of other

companies in our industry;
• market conditions or trends in our industry and the economy as a whole;
• announcements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships or divestitures and our ability to complete

any such transaction;
• announcements of investigations or regulatory scrutiny of our operations or lawsuits filed against us;
• capital commitments;
• changes in accounting principles;
• additions or departures of key personnel;
• sales of our common stock, including sales of large blocks of our common stock or sales by our directors and officers; and
• events that affect BKC or PLK.

 
In addition, if the market for restaurant company stocks or the stock market in general experiences loss of investor confidence, the trading price
of our common stock could decline for reasons unrelated to our business, results of operations or financial condition. The trading price of our
common stock might also decline in reaction to events that affect other companies in our industry or related industries even if these events do
not directly affect us.
 
In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s securities, class action securities litigation has often been brought
against that company. Due to the potential volatility of our stock price, we may therefore be the target of securities litigation in the future.
Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and divert
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management’s attention and resources from our business, and could also require us to make substantial payments to satisfy judgments or to
settle litigation.
 
The concentrated ownership of our capital stock by insiders will likely limit our stockholders’ ability to influence corporate matters.
 
Our executive officers, directors, BKC and Blue Holdco 1, LLC together beneficially own approximately 22.0% of our outstanding common
stock as of August 5, 2019 without giving effect to the conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock and 43.5% of
the common stock outstanding after giving effect to the conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock and the Series C Preferred Stock. As a
result, our executive officers, directors, affiliates of RBI and Cambridge, if they act as a group, will be able to significantly influence matters
that require approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions such as mergers
and acquisitions. The directors will have the authority to make decisions affecting our capital structure, including the issuance of additional
debt and the declaration of dividends. Each of RBI and Cambridge may also have interests that differ from yours and may vote in a way with
which you disagree and which may be adverse to your interests. Corporate action might be taken even if other stockholders oppose them. This
concentration of ownership might also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of us that other stockholders may view as
beneficial, could deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of our company and
might ultimately depress the market price of our common stock. 
 
We do not expect to pay any cash dividends for the foreseeable future, and the New Senior Credit Facilities limit our ability to pay dividends
to our stockholders.
 
We do not anticipate that we will pay any cash dividends to holders of our common stock in the foreseeable future. The absence of a dividend
on our common stock may increase the volatility of the market price of our common stock or make it more likely that the market price of our
common stock will decrease in the event of adverse economic conditions or adverse developments affecting our company. Additionally, our
New Senior Credit Facilities limit, and the debt instruments that we may enter into in the future may limit our ability to pay dividends to our
stockholders.
 
If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they downgrade our stock, the price of our stock could
decline.
 
The trading market for our common stock will rely in part on the research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us or our
business. We cannot assure you that these analysts will publish research or reports about us or that any analysts that do so will not discontinue
publishing research or reports about us in the future. If one or more analysts who cover us downgrade our stock, our stock price could decline
rapidly. If analysts do not publish reports about us or if one or more analysts cease coverage of our stock, we could lose visibility in the market,
which in turn could cause our stock price to decline.
 
Provisions in our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, as amended, or Delaware law might discourage,
delay or prevent a change of control of our company or changes in our management and, therefore, depress the trading price of our
common stock.
 
Delaware corporate law and our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, as amended, contain provisions that
could discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company or changes in our management that the stockholders of our company
may deem advantageous. These provisions:

• require that special meetings of our stockholders be called only by our board of directors or certain of our officers, thus prohibiting our
stockholders from calling special meetings;

• deny holders of our common stock cumulative voting rights in the election of directors, meaning that stockholders owning a majority of
our outstanding shares of common stock will be able to elect all of our directors;

• authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that our board could issue to dilute the voting and economic rights of our
common stock and to discourage a takeover attempt;
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• provide that approval of our board of directors or a supermajority of stockholders is necessary to make, alter or repeal our amended and
restated bylaws and that approval of a supermajority of stockholders is necessary to amend, alter or change certain provisions of our
restated certificate of incorporation;

• establish advance notice requirements for stockholder nominations for election to our board or for proposing matters that can be acted
upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings;

• divide our board into three classes of directors, with each class serving a staggered 3-year term, which generally increases the difficulty
of replacing a majority of the directors;

• provide that directors only may be removed for cause by a majority of the board or by a supermajority of our stockholders; and
• require that any action required or permitted to be taken by our stockholders must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting

of stockholders and may not be effected by any consent in writing.
 
Risks Related to Our Indebtedness
 
Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition.
 

As of June 30, 2019 we had approximately $454.9 million of total indebtedness outstanding consisting of $425.0 million under our Term
Loan B Facility, $25.0 million under our Revolving Credit Facility, $1.2 million of lease financing obligations and $3.7 million of finance
leases and other debt. As of June 30, 2019, we had $25.0 million of revolving credit borrowings outstanding and $88.3 million of borrowing
availability under our Revolving Credit Facility (after reserving $11.7 million for letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit Facility,
which included amounts for anticipated claims from our renewals of workers' compensation and other insurance policies).

    
As a result of our substantial indebtedness, a significant portion of our operating cash flow will be required to make payments of interest

and principal on our outstanding indebtedness, and we may not generate sufficient cash flow from operations, or have future borrowings
available under our New Senior Credit Facilities, to enable us to repay our indebtedness, including the Term Loan B Facility, or to fund other
liquidity needs.
 

Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences to our stockholders. For example, it could:
• make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the New Senior Credit Facilities and our other debt;
• increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness and related interest,

including indebtedness we may incur in the future, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital
expenditures and other general corporate purposes;

• restrict our ability to acquire additional restaurants;
• limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;
• increase our cost of borrowing;
• place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that may have less debt; and
• limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service requirements or

general corporate purposes.
 
We expect to use cash flow from operations, our cash balances and revolving credit borrowings under our New Senior Credit Facilities to meet
our current and future financial obligations, including funding our operations, debt service, possible future acquisitions and capital expenditures
(including restaurant remodeling and new restaurant development). Our ability to make these payments depends on our future performance,
which will be affected by financial, business, economic and other factors, many of which we cannot control. Our business may not generate
sufficient cash flow from operations in the future, which could result in our being unable to repay indebtedness, or to fund other liquidity needs.
If we do not have sufficient liquidity, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures and restaurant acquisitions, sell assets, obtain
additional debt or equity capital or restructure or refinance all or a portion of our debt, including our senior credit facility, on or before maturity.
We cannot make any assurances that we will be able to accomplish any of these alternatives on terms acceptable to us, or at all. In addition, the
terms of existing or
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future indebtedness, including the agreements for our New Senior Credit Facilities, may limit our ability to pursue any of these alternatives.
 
Despite current indebtedness levels and restrictive covenants, we may still be able to incur more debt or make certain restricted payments,
which could further exacerbate the risks described above.
 
Although our New Senior Credit Facilities contain restrictions on our ability to incur indebtedness, those restrictions are subject to a number of
exceptions. We could also consider investments in joint ventures or acquisitions, which may increase our indebtedness. Moreover, although our
New Senior Credit Facilities contain restrictions on our ability to make restricted payments, including the declaration and payment of
dividends, we are able to make such restricted payments under certain circumstances. Adding new debt to current debt levels or making
restricted payments could intensify the related risks that we and our subsidiaries now face.
 
Our New Senior Credit Facilities restrict our ability to engage in some business and financial transactions and contain certain other
restrictive terms.
 
Our New Senior Credit Facilities, restrict our ability in certain circumstances to, among other things:

• incur additional debt;
• pay dividends and make other distributions on, redeem or repurchase, capital stock;
• make investments or other restricted payments;
• enter into transactions with affiliates;
• engage in sale and leaseback transactions;
• sell all, or substantially all, of our assets;
• create liens on assets to secure debt; or
• effect a consolidation or merger.

    
These covenants limit our operational flexibility and could prevent us from taking advantage of business opportunities as they arise, growing
our business or competing effectively. In addition, our New Senior Credit Facilities required us to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy
other financial tests. At June 30, 2019, we were in compliance with such covenants under our New Senior Credit Facilities. Our ability to meet
these financial ratios and tests can be affected by events beyond our control, and we cannot assure you that we will meet these tests.
 
A breach of any of these covenants or other provisions in our debt agreements could result in an event of default, which if not cured or waived,
could result in such debt becoming immediately due and payable. This, in turn, could cause our other debt to become due and payable as a
result of cross-acceleration provisions contained in the agreements governing such other debt. In the event that some or all of our debt is
accelerated and becomes immediately due and payable, we may not have the funds to repay, or the ability to refinance, such debt.

We may not have the funds necessary to satisfy all of our obligations under our New Senior Credit Facilities or other indebtedness in
connection with certain change of control events.
 
Our New Senior Credit Facilities provides that certain change of control events constitute an event of default under such New Senior Credit
Facilities. Such an event of default entitles the lenders thereunder to, among other things, cause all outstanding debt obligations under the New
Senior Credit Facilities to become due and payable and to proceed against the collateral securing such New Senior Credit Facilities. Any event
of default or acceleration of the New Senior Credit Facilities will likely also cause a default under the terms of our other indebtedness.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Item 5. Other Information

None

Item 6. Exhibits

(a) The following exhibits are filed as part of this report.

Exhibit No.   
31.1

 
Chief Executive Officer’s Certificate Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Carrols Restaurant
Group, Inc.

31.2
 

Chief Financial Officer’s Certificate Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Carrols Restaurant
Group, Inc.

32.1
 

Chief Executive Officer’s Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc.

32.2  Chief Financial Officer’s Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc.



101.INS  XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

  

 CARROLS RESTAURANT GROUP, INC.
  

Date: August 9, 2019 /s/ Daniel T. Accordino
 (Signature)

 
Daniel T. Accordino

Chief Executive Officer
  

Date: August 9, 2019 /s/ Paul R. Flanders
 (Signature)

 
Paul R. Flanders

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Daniel T. Accordino, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019 of Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter,
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.
 

Date: August 9, 2019  /s/ Daniel T. Accordino

  
Daniel T. Accordino
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Paul R. Flanders, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019 of Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter,
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.
 

Date: August 9, 2019  /s/ Paul R. Flanders

  
Paul R. Flanders
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Daniel T. Accordino, Chief Executive Officer of Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Quarterly Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Quarterly Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
 

 

/s/ Daniel T. Accordino
Daniel T. Accordino
Chief Executive Officer

August 9, 2019



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Paul R. Flanders, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Quarterly Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Quarterly Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
 

 

/s/ Paul R. Flanders
Paul R. Flanders
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

August 9, 2019


